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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

\ =+
TEHRES
Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”)
of Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”), | would like to
present the 2018/19 annual report of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019.

REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Year”), the Group’s revenue
was approximately HK$163.4 million (2018: approximately HK$99.7
million). Such increase was mainly attributable to the improvement of
the business environment in Hong Kong during the Year, leading to a
relatively higher level of construction activities and available projects
when compared with the year ended 31 March 2018, resulting in a
higher than expected demand for our products.

The Group’s net profit increased from approximately HK$0.5 million
for the year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately HK$19.8 million
for the Year. The increase in net profit was mainly due to the increase
in revenue and gross profit, net off with the increase in selling and
distribution expenses and administrative expenses.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group remains positive about the prospects
of the market and will continue to focus on our core business of
manufacturing and trading of down-the-hole (“DTH”) rockdrilling tools
in Hong Kong and Macau, and our efforts to strengthen and extend
our presence in the overseas markets. In order to maximise the
long term returns to our shareholders, the Group will devote more
resources towards the development of our manufacturing and trading
of DTH rockdrilling tools business.

APPRECIATION

Lastly, | would like to express our sincere gratitude to our
shareholders, customers and business partners for their continuous
support, and to our management and staff members for their
diligence, dedication and contribution to the growth of the Group.

By order of the Board

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
He Xiaoming

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR & A Mo AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of DTH rockdrilling tools, trading of piling and drilling
machineries and trading of rockdrilling equipment.

Hong Kong and Macau remain to be the Group’s major markets,
where the revenue generated from Hong Kong contributed
to approximately HK$130.0 million for the Year (2018:
approximately HK$88.5 million), or approximately 79.6% of the
total revenue during the Year (2018: approximately 88.8%). The
business in Macau has been steadily progressing during the
Year, where the revenue generated from Macau contributed to
approximately HK$22.4 million for the Year (2018: approximately
HK$6.0 million), or approximately 13.7% of the total revenue
during the Year (2018: approximately 6.0%). Revenue from
Peru has shown significant increase during the Year, which
contributed to approximately HK$5.7 million (2018: nil), or
approximately 3.5% of the total revenue during the Year (2018:
nil).

Manufacturing and Trading of DTH Rockdrilling Tools

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of DTH rockdrilling tools. Our self-designed and
manufactured DTH rockdrilling tools can be categorised into
the following main categories, namely DTH hammers, casing
systems (comprising driver bits and casing bits), and other
miscellaneous products including button bits and bit openers,
as well as our newly developed products, drill pipes, cluster
drills and casing tubes. Revenue from the manufacturing and
trading of DTH rockdrilling tools contributed to approximately
66.3% of the total revenue during the Year (2018: approximately
62.8%).

Trading of Piling and Drilling Machineries and Rockdrilling
Equipment

The Group is also engaged in the trading of piling and drilling
machineries and rockdrilling equipment to our customers as part
of our technical rockdrilling solutions. Revenue from the trading
of piling and drilling machineries, and rockdrilling equipment,
contributed to approximately 23.7% of the total revenue during
the Year (2018: approximately 27.6%) and approximately 10.1%
of the total revenue during the Year (2018: approximately 9.6%),
respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR & A Mo AT

2.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

2.1

Consolidated Results of Operations

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately HK$63.7
million, or 63.9%, to approximately HK$163.4 million for
the Year, from approximately HK$99.7 million for the year
ended 31 March 2018. Our gross profit for the years
ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 were approximately
HK$37.5 million and approximately HK$66.4 million,
respectively. For the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2019, the revenue from the manufacturing and trading
of DTH rockdrilling tools accounted for approximately
62.8% and approximately 66.3% of the total revenue,
respectively. The revenue from trading of piling and
drilling machineries, and trading of rockdrilling equipment
accounted for the rest of our revenue. We sell our
products to customers in Hong Kong, Macau, and
through distributors in Finland and Japan to end users in
Scandinavia and Japan respectively. We generated most
of our revenue from sales in Hong Kong, which accounted
for approximately 88.8% and approximately 79.6% of
our total revenue in the years ended 31 March 2018 and
2019, respectively.

The following discussion addresses the principal trends
that have affected our results of operations during the
Year. The following table sets out our consolidated results
of operations for the years indicated:

2.

Bt 75 (5] @

2.1

AR EXEE
REBWRFZIHEZ T N\F=
A=+—HIFEHO7TEES
TN A963.7H & 7B 7T 5063.9%
EREEMNIEIAEE BT K
fREBEE-_ZT—\Fh_ZT—A
FZA=+—BIFENEFND
B % /37.58 B8 T Kk H66.48
EBT REE_Z—N\FKk=
E-NE=A=1+—HILFE"
WENEEEA2ETAENK
5 BIAE 4B U 25 1 4962.8% M 49
66.3% - K% T Wm AE FIT
B BN E FRERENK
o HMABREFPUKERS
MM E AR HEED BT A
WD R AR B PEEE
meBE_E—NER_ZFT—N
FZA=+—HILFEE &KX
HoWERENBEBSNEE o
B 48U 25 4)88.8% K #)79.6% ©

TR A F R E L I &
BRENTEEE - TREIIK
PIRIRFENGAKEERE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZB=+—HLFE

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue g 163,441 99,703

Cost of sales =R DN (97,084) (62,234)
Gross profit E 66,357 37,469
Other income and expenses HEmlAREX 2,108 202

Impairment losses, net of reversal EEIE BB O (2,952) (1,179)

Other gains and losses Hilam kEE 1,404 (872)

Selling and distribution expenses HE KD HE X (6,305) (4,806)

Administrative expenses THAX (33,773) (27,419)

Finance costs Bl & AR (1,041) (473)
Profit before tax R A0 A% A 25,798 2,922

Income tax expense Fr 5 i (6,033) (2,431)
Profit for the year F R 19,765 491

Total comprehensive income FREEA RS

for the year 17,017 3,756

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR & A Mo AT

2.

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Consolidated Results of Operations (Continued)

2.1

@

®)

(c)

(@)

Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately
HK$63.7 million, or 63.9%, to approximately
HK$163.4 million for the Year, from approximately
HK$99.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2018,
primarily due to the improvement of the business
environment in Hong Kong during the Year, leading
to a relatively higher level of construction activities
and available projects when compared with the year
ended 31 March 2018, resulting in a higher than
expected demand for our products.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately
HK$28.9 million, or 77.1%, to approximately
HK$66.4 million for the Year, from approximately
HK$37.5 million for the year ended 31 March
2018, primarily due to the increase in revenue as
mentioned above. Gross profit margin increased
to approximately 40.6% for the Year, from
approximately 37.6% for the year ended 31 March
2018, mainly attributable to the increase in gross
profit margins from the trading of piling and drilling
machineries and trading of rockdrilling equipment
segments.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses
increased by approximately HK$1.5 million, or
31.3%, to approximately HK$6.3 million for the
Year, from approximately HK$4.8 million for the year
ended 31 March 2018, primarily due to the increase
in sales staff costs and sales commission during the
Year.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased
by approximately HK$6.4 million, or 23.4%, to
approximately HK$33.8 million for the Year, from
approximately HK$27.4 million for the year ended
31 March 2018, primarily due to the increase in staff
costs, rental expenses and donations during the
Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
2.1 Consolidated Results of Operations (Continued)
(e)  Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by
approximately HK$0.5 million, or 100.0%, to
approximately HK$1.0 million for the Year, from
approximately HK$0.5 million for the year ended
31 March 2018, primarily due to the increase in
borrowings during the Year.

() Net Profit

The Group recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$19.8 million for the Year as compared to the
net profit of approximately HK$0.5 million for the
year ended 31 March 2018. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase in revenue and
gross profit, net off with the increase in selling and
distribution expenses and administrative expenses
as explained above.

STRATEGY AND PROSPECTS

During the Year, the Group continued to develop its various
business and geographical segments. The market environment
in the Group’s major market, Hong Kong, has improved during
the Year. As more construction projects were available in
the market, our customers have increased their purchases of
our products, which in turn had a positive contribution to the
Group’s revenue and profit during the Year. As motions have
passed at the Finance Committee of the Legislative Council in
March 2018 to streamline the procedures on the deliberation of
agenda items and committee members speaking on proposals,
this has a positive impact as to the timeliness of the approval
process, and it is anticipated that more construction projects
will commence in the coming years.

The Macau market continued to progress steadily during
the Year. The Group will continue to capture the business
opportunities as and when they arise.

The Group has been continuing its efforts to extend its presence
in several key international markets, including Scandinavia, Peru,
Germany, Brazil, Japan and India. Progress has been made in
the exploring the South America region, where the Group has
commenced businesses with customers in Peru and Brazil for
construction projects during the Year. Peru, in particular, has
shown significant progress, where the revenue contributed to
approximately 3.5% of the total revenue during the Year.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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STRATEGY AND PROSPECTS (continued)

Overall, the Group remains positive towards the future of the
construction market and the business of the Group in Hong
Kong and Macau, and will continue its efforts to strengthen and
extend its presence in the overseas markets.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s total cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately HK$74.0 million of
which approximately 94.1%, 2.6%, 3.2% and 0.1% of the
cash and cash equivalents were denominated in Hong Kong
dollar, Renminbi, U.S. dollar and Euro, respectively (2018:
approximately HK$72.0 million of which approximately 96.3%,
2.2%, 1.2% and 0.3% of the cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi, U.S. dollar and
Euro, respectively). The increase was mainly resulted from the
increase in revenue during the Year.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s bank borrowings of
approximately HK$5.3 million (2018: approximately HK$1.7
million) had variable interest rates and was repayable within one
year, which are guaranteed by the Company, and the Group’s
other borrowings of approximately HK$20.0 million (2018: nil)
had fixed interest rate of 5.0% per annum and was repayable
in the second year, which was unsecured. As at 31 March
2018 and 2019, all of the bank and other borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2019 (defined
as the Group’s total interest-bearing liabilities divided by
the Group’s total equity) was approximately 14.9% (2018:
approximately 1.1%). The increase in the gearing ratio of the
Group as at 31 March 2019 is mainly due to the increase in
borrowings.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 11 January 2017 (the “Listing
Date”).

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$38,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares
was 380,000,000 of HK$0.1 each.

There has been no change in the capital structure of the
Company since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R R L

6.

10

il

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT AND

CAPITAL ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group did not have plan for material
investment and capital assets.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this report, there has been no significant
investment, material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
associated companies by the Group during the Year.

CHANGE IN CONTROL AND MANDATORY CASH
OFFER

The deed of sale and purchase was entered into between
Colour Shine Investments Limited (“Colour Shine”) and Hang
Yip Company Limited (“Hang Yip”), a former Controlling
Shareholder who was interested in 195,000,000 shares of the
Company, representing 51.32% of the issued share capital
of the Company (the “Sale Share(s)”), on 2 February 2018,
pursuant to which, among others, Colour Shine agreed to
purchase and Hang Yip agreed to sell the Sale Shares for a total
cash consideration of HK$349.05 million (equivalent to HK$1.79
per Sale Share). The completion of the sale and purchase of
the Sale Shares took place on 5 February 2018.

Upon the completion of the sale and purchase of the Sale
Shares, Colour Shine and parties acting in concert with it were
interested in 195,000,000 shares of the Company, representing
51.32% of the issued share capital of the Company on
5 February 2018, Colour Shine therefore was required to make
a mandatory unconditional cash offer for all the issued shares
of the Company not already owned or agreed to be acquired
by it and parties acting in concert with it under Rule 26.1 of
the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Offer”).
The Offer was closed on 13 April 2018.

Details of the Offer have been disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 7 February 2018, 13 February 2018,
28 February 2018, 23 March 2018, 29 March 2018 and
13 April 2018 respectively and the Company’s circular dated
23 March 2018.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

EARBERAFAENR
Rt Bl

R_B—AE=A=+—F A%£MH
WEREMERKRERERNEENGTE -

EXRE-EXKRBRY
=

[ —]
BRABEREEIN RAFE A%
EMETRAERERE BEARBER D
EMBARAIRBERRNEIR-

EHIESEREFERS

B4

MBI ERRAR (KB Ha7E R
BREBEERAA(BED(HRLK
7N 57195,000,0001%& B ((FERM)
(EARBR=_ZE—NF-_A-HE®
ﬁﬂx$a’351 % )HFHEBER)FILE
EZE B (EPeRBEBRER
ENEBEREHESERND  ARE
#2349.05B EX T (HE RNERFER
1798 L) - FERGMEEEDR =
T-NF-_FRHEK-

ﬁ

REEFERHDTHE  CERE—
KT:J@J/\iE/‘195000OOOHx$ AR
BHEEREARTR=_ZE—N\F=A
A HBEBITRANS1.82%) P H #E
wo A REBEEBARIWERA G
_J'/g\lj%26.1ﬂ7k ’ W/ﬁﬁ//\ﬁ‘kﬁﬂﬁi%
BETEG (KEBEE —BITHALE
A S T U B BR AN 1E H o ) 1 A
BHERSZHTEHND - BHER =
T-NFOA+=8#IE-

ZHMFREDRARRIBHRAZ
T-N\F-A+A T \F_A
+=B - —F-N\F-A-t+NA8:

“E-N\FZA-tZB TN

F=Z=A-_tNABE-Z-N\FMA
T=ZBHREARARBEHA-F
—NF=ZAZ+T=HNBHPHE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR & A Mo AT

10.

11.

12.

13.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has not had any material contingent liability as at
31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the Group had no
capital commitments.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 March 2019, bank borrowings amounting to
approximately HK$5.3 million (2018: approximately HK$1.7
million) are guaranteed by the Company. As at 31 March
2019, deposits placed at an insurance company amounting
to approximately HK$4.5 million (2018: approximately HK$4.4
million) were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT AND LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group’s objective regarding cash flow management is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through a combination of internal resources, bank borrowings,
and other debt or equity securities, as appropriate. The Group is
comfortable with the present financial and liquidity position, and
will continue to maintain a reasonable liquidity buffer to ensure
sufficient funds are available to meet liquidity requirements at
all times.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Our Group’s operations are mainly in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), and most of the
operating transactions, revenue, expenses, monetary assets
and liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. As such, the Directors are of the view that the
Group’s risk in foreign exchange is insignificant and that we
should have sufficient resources to meet foreign exchange
requirements as and if it arises. The Group has not engaged in
any derivative to hedge its exposure to foreign exchange risk.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREN R

AT

14. USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE PUBLIC OFFER 14 2HBREMERERE
The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the KRARMRZFE—+tF—H+—
Stock Exchange on 11 January 2017. The net proceeds from BB ER LT - LMNBEARRQF
the public offer received by the Company, after deduction of RAREERENOBHEAE KH
the underwriting commissions and other related listing expenses AR EmHA SR - AR B AR
payable by the Company in the public offer, were approximately SRR FTIENIBFREL B88.3E &
HK$88.3 million. In accordance with the proposed applications BIL - REBHARE-_ZFT—X"F+A
set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of “TEMNERER(BRERDIKRK
Proceeds” of the prospectus dated 30 December 2016 (the FTEIRFTISRIERE] —SEMNE
“Prospectus”), the net proceeds received were applied by the FAZ AEEELMABRE_ZF
Group from the Listing Date up to 31 March 2019 as follows: —hWEFZA=Z+—B#HEBKINFRE

RIBFHEBETIAE
Used Unused
amounts amounts Expected
Estimated Net as at as at timeline for
Proceeds as per  Actual Net 31 March 31 March use of
Use of net proceeds FEREFHEAE  the Prospectus  Proceeds 2019 2019 proceeds
REARERM R=ZB-N% RZB-N%F
st BRAS ZA=+-BH ZB=T-HK MBRERE
RERE RERE EBASE ABASHE RERER
HKS' milion  HK$' million HKS' milion  HK$' million
BEAT REAR BEAT BEAT
Investing in new manufacturing & 574 Z R i 48.0 50.4 9.9 405 By 31 March 2021
facility I e =1
Research and development T 3.9 44 1.3 3.1 By 31 March 2021
ZEZ-5=A=1-Rj
Participation in overseas 2MENRER 9.6 9.7 45 5.2 By 31 March 2021
exhibition and promotions BEED I e =1
Purchase of brand new driling B E 2 ¥ & 134 8.2 838 8.8 - Fully utilised as at
machineries 31 March 2019
R=E-nF=A=+-AH
BEREFA
Increasing manpower in EMEREBHAF 3.8 44 0.8 3.6 By 31 March 2021
Hong Kong ZEZ-5=A=1—-Rj
Renting of new office for HEFEAY 3.2 35 0.6 29 By 31 March 2021
Hong Kong headquarters HBAE =
Working capital and other BEESREM 6.9 7.1 6.0 11 By 31 March 2020
general corporate purposes  — B ERR “ECRFZAZ1-H7
Total @i 836 88.3 319 56.4
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B IR & A Mo AT

14. USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE PUBLIC OFFER

15.

(Continued)
The unutilised amounts of the net proceeds will be applied in
the manner consistent with that mentioned in the Prospectus.

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not anticipate any
change to the plan of the use of proceeds as disclosed above.
The unused net proceeds have been deposited with banks in
Hong Kong.

For further information regarding the use of the Company’s
proceeds from the public offer, please refer to the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had approximately 129
employees (2018: approximately 96 employees) in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group’s remuneration policy is reviewed
periodically and determined by reference to market terms,
company performance, and individual qualifications and
performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on
discretionary basis, mandatory provident fund scheme for Hong
Kong employees, and state-sponsored retirement plans for PRC
employees. The Group also offers a variety of training schemes
to its employees.

14.

15.

PHBEMSHREBHE®

ABRHMERREFEBREBEARE
REFratys SR o

RABREEH EFHEFA LXARE
MABRAERZ BTG HRTM
2 RBHMBRBFEDHFRR
BBEIRTT ©

BRI D A AK R E G RARR K
- AR BLBRREE A
&R AR -

e 8 X% % B 3R
R-F—AE=A=+—A A%H
RE SR BEANI120%EE (=2
—\F : #1965 B B) - ARET R
SHMRELSE TSGR AT
AREAEERRRGEE - L8
THEA B R B R TR AL -
AEBEREMBROBIE AR HE
K o LR B R 0 B 50 4 B IR IR A
B AEETFALEBEBEBRA
SRS R

BREBMEZERERAT
2018/19%F 3R

13



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o

14

Al A N =+
FEAWmE

COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE

The Company focuses on maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for purposes of enhancing the value for
its shareholders and protecting their interests. The Company has
established the corporate governance structure in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) provided in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and has
set up a series of corporate governance measures. The Company
has adopted and complied with such provisions of the Code (the
“Code Provision(s)’) as stated in the Code during the Year except
for the Code Provision of A.2.1.

In accordance with Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be held by the same person. On 13 April 2018, Mr.
Chan Leung Choi resigned and Mr. He Xiaoming was appointed
to act as the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company. However, given the development of the Group and
the rich and extensive experience that Mr. Chan Leung Choi
has in the industry and the Group with a long history, the Board
believes that both Mr. Chan Leung Choi and Mr. He Xiaoming
concurrently acting as the chairman and chief executive
officer helped implement the Group’s business strategies
and enhanced the operating efficiency. In addition, the Board
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, enabling
the Company’s shareholders to be represented sufficiently and
fairly under the monitoring of the Board.

The Board will examine and review, from time to time, the
Company’s corporate governance practices and operations in
order to meet the relevant provisions under the Listing Rules
and to protect the shareholders’ interests.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS CONDUCTED BY
DIRECTORS AND THE RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its model
code for securities transactions by the Directors. Following a
specific enquiry to all Directors by the Company, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

3.
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PEEIARSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board of Directors

3.1

@

Composition of Board of Directors

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
(i) Executive Directors, Mr. He Xiaoming (Chairman),
Mr. Huang Shixin and Mr. Wong Ka Shing; and (ii)
Independent Non-executive Directors, Ms. Lam Hoi
Yu Nicki, Mr. Lau Leong Yuen and Mr. Liu Tin Lap.

The Company has at least three Independent
Non-executive Directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board), in compliance with the
provisions of the Listing Rules and among whom, at
least one Independent Non-executive Director must
possess professional qualifications or accounting
knowledge or professional knowledge related to
finance management. After taking into consideration
of the factors regarding the evaluation of the
independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the written confirmations of all Independent
Non-executive Directors, the Board believe that
all Independent Non-executive Directors shall be
independent individuals.

The Directors may, at the Company’s expense,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances. The Company will provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors
upon request to assist the Directors to discharge
their duties to the Company.

Before each Board meeting, the senior management
will provide relevant information pertaining to
matters to be brought before the Board for decision
as well as reports relating to the operational and
financial performance of the Group. Where any
Director requires more information than is supplied
by the senior management, each Director has the
right to separately and independently access the
Company’s senior management to make further
enquiries.
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PEEIARSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board of Directors (Continued)

3.1

(b)

()

Job Duties and Authority of the Board of Directors
The Board shall be accountable to the general
meeting and have the duty to report to the general
meeting. The Board is responsible for convening
the general meeting, implementing the resolutions
of the general meeting, determining the operational
plan and investment proposals of the Company,
setting up the annual financial budget proposal,
final accounts, profit distribution proposal, proposal
for increase or decrease of capital and others,
deciding on the establishment of the Company’s
management authority, determining the appointment
or dismissal of chief executive officer, chief financial
officer and other senior management officers,
formulating the basic management system of the
Company and determining the establishment of the
special committees of the Board.

Job Duties and Authority of the Senior Management

The senior management is responsible for the
specific implementation of the resolutions of the
Board and of the daily business management of
the Company, which includes formulating () the
Company’s operating plan and investment proposal,
(i) the plan of establishing the internal management
authority, (i) the basic management system of
the Company and (iv) the Company’s specific
regulations.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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PEEIARSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

3.2

Meetings of the Board of Directors

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.1.1 of the Code, the
Board should meet regularly and Board meetings should
be held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Agenda of Board meetings are
presented to the Directors for comments and approval.
The Board is provided with adequate, timely and
reliable information about the Group’s business and
developments before each Board meeting at which
the Directors actively participate and hold informed
discussions. A notice of regular board meeting shall be
given to all directors at least 14 days before the meeting
is convened pursuant to the requirements of the Code,
and such notice shall state the date, time and venue of
the meeting to be convened and the format to be adopted
of such meeting. Other interim Board meetings have
reasonable notices be delivered to all Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules,
in the event that the Company decides to announce to
distribute, propose or pay dividends, or it shall pass at
the meeting of the Board such resolutions in respect of
profits or losses for any year, half-year or other periods,
the Company must give a notice to the Stock Exchange
at least seven working days before the convening of such
meeting and must issue an announcement thereof.

The quorum for a Board meeting shall be the presence
of two Directors. The Directors may participate in any
meeting of the Board by means of a conference telephone
or other communications equipment through which all
persons participating in the meeting can communicate
with each other simultaneously and instantaneously and,
for the purpose of counting a quorum, such participation
shall constitute presence at a meeting as if those
participating were present in person. The secretary of
the Company’s Board is responsible for preparing and
safekeeping the minutes of the Board meetings and
ensuring that the Directors can enquire about such
minutes.
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PEEIARSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

3.2

3.

Meetings of the Board of Directors (Continued)

During the Year,

the Board convened a total of 6

EEE )
32 EEEEHE)

RAEE EF2AHKA

AN

meetings. The attendance record of the meetings by the R EFTHEEZLERT
Directors was as follows: wm
Number of
meetings of
Board of
Directors
attended/should Attendance
Name Position attend rate
BHE BHE
& B ESgSE4HE =
Mr. He Xiaoming (appointed on Executive Director, Chairman 6/6 100%
13 April 2018) of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer
MEXREER=ZF-/NF WITESE EFGLE
A+ =HEZF) FATBAEH
Mr. Wong Ka Shing (appointed on  Executive Director, Chairman 11 100%
9 January 2019) of the Board and Chief
Executive Officer
BERREER-F-NF WITES EF8EF
—ﬁnﬂﬁiﬁ) FAT AR
Ms. Lam Hoi Yu Nicki (@ppointed  Independent Non-executive 6/6 100%
on 20 April 2018) Director
ME ML £ (RZFE—-/F BIEMITES
/mA =+ HEZF)
Mr. Lau Leong Yuen (appointed on  Independent Non-executive 6/6 100%
20 April 2018) Director
ANEREER-ZF-NF BIIENITES
A=+ HEZFE)
Mr. Liu Tin Lap (appointed on Independent Non-executive 6/6 100%
20 April 2018) Director
BRIEER=ZF—-/NF BIUENITES
A=+ HEZE)
Mr. Chan Tat Choi (resigned on Executive Director 3/3 100%
8 November 2018)
BREMEE (R -F—/1F BITES
+—ANHEHE)
Mr. Chan Leung Choi (resigned on  Executive Director, Chairman N/A N/A
13 April 2018) of the Board and Chief TR 1 iE A

RRMEER=F
9 A +=HEE)

—NFE
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PEEIARSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

3.2 Meetings of the Board of Directors (Continued)

EEE )

32 EEEEER#H)

Number of
meetings of
Board of
Directors
attended/should Attendance
Name Position attend rate
BHE ELE
" A B 1 ExzegEyH HE =
Mr. Chan Kin Choi (resigned on Executive Director N/A N/A
13 April 2018) A5 A i@
BRIEM A E(R=ZF—-NEF HITES
P9 A+ =HEFF)
Ms. Liang Ning (resigned on Executive Director N/A N/A
13 April 2018) A5 A i@
RELL(R=ZF-NEF HITES
A+ =HE )
Mr. Chan Lewis (resigned on Independent Non-executive N/A N/A
20 April 2018) Director i A i A
BRLmAER=ZFE-NEF BIEMITES
/A =+ HEFE)
Mr. Lam Chun Fung (resigned on  Independent Non-executive N/A N/A
20 April 2018) Director i A i A
BEREBEEE(R=-ZF-/NF BIEMITES
/A =+ HEFE)
Mr. Sung Lok Man Richard Independent Non-executive N/A N/A
(resigned on 20 April 2018) Director i@ A T A
REXKE (R ZFE—-NF BIEMNITES
A=+ HEE)
BREBZERERA R
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

3.3

3.4

3.5

Appointment of Directors

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company, the Directors have been
appointed at the general meeting for a term of three
years, after which they may be re-elected. The Company
has formulated the procedures of such appointment. The
Nomination Committee shall be responsible for nominating
new Directors and then submitting such nomination to the
Board for review and consideration. All newly nominated
Directors must be elected and approved at the general
meeting.

Training and continuing development of Directors
Each newly appointed Director is provided with
comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of the operations and businesses of
the Group as well as the director’s duties, responsibilities,
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

During the year, the Directors were provided with regular
updates on the Group’s business and operation and
the information which covered topics, including but not
limited to, CG Code, disclosure and compliance of inside
information, updates and changes in relation to legislative
and regulatory requirements in which the Group conducts
its business, and reading materials which are relevant
to their duties and responsibilities for their study and
reference. During the Year, all Directors have participated
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills pursuant to the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the Code.

Company Secretary and her training

On 20 April 2018, Mr. Chow Jonathan Edward Chun-
chung resigned as the Company Secretary of the
Company, and Ms. Choi Yee Man was appointed as
the Company Secretary of the Company. The profile
of the Company Secretary is stated in the section of
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report. Whilst the Company Secretary
reports to the chairman of the Board on the Group’s
company secretarial and corporate governance matters,
all members of the Board have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. During the Year,
Ms. Choi Yee Man undertook no less than 15 hours of
professional training to update her skills and knowledge.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES

Qur

Board delegates certain responsibilities to various

committees. In accordance with relevant laws, regulations, the
Articles of Association of the Company and the certain rules

and

regulations, we have formed three board committees,

namely the Audit and Compliance Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

41

Audit and Compliance Committee

The Company has established the Audit and Compliance
Committee in accordance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules and the Code, and has expressly stated the scope
of job duties of such committee in writing. The Audit
and Compliance Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Liu Tin Lap, Mr. Lau Leong Yuen and Ms. Lam
Hoi Yu Nicki (appointed on 20 April 2018 respectively).
Mr. Sung Lok Man Richard, Mr. Chan Lewis and Mr.
Lam Chun Fung ceased to be the members of the Audit
and Compliance Committee since their resignation as
Independent Non-executive Directors on 20 April 2018,
respectively. All members of the Audit and Compliance
Committee are Independent Non-executive Directors. Mr.
Liu Tin Lap is the chairman of the Audit and Compliance
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit and Compliance
Committee are to review and supervise the Company’s
financial reporting process, financial and internal control
systems, to supervise the Company’s internal audit
system, to oversee the audit process and to recommend
the engagement or replacement of external auditors. The
Audit and Compliance Committee is also responsible for
the communications between the internal and the external
auditors and performing other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES (continueq)

41

Audit and Compliance Committee (Continued)

During the Year, 2 meetings were held by the Audit and
Compliance Committee. The attendance record of each
member of the Audit and Compliance Committee is set
out below:

4.

EEEZEET

4.1

BEEREHREEE(H)
RAEE BERLAGHREES
BITMAREGHE - BEREEAEHRE
EeEHEZREZHBRLEET
mE

Number of

meetings
attended/ Attendance
should attend rate

BHE/

Name of committee members ZEEHREH R EHEEZREYE HE &R

Mr. Liu Tin Lap (Chairman) BRI E(FE) 2/2 100%
(appointed on 20 April 2018) (R=ZZF—-NFHAHA=+H

EZ(T)

Ms. Lam Hoi Yu Nicki melmzt(R=-FE—/1F 2/2 100%
(appointed on 20 April 2018) PIA =+ HEZ(T)

Mr. Lau Leong Yuen REREE(R=-ZF—NF 2/2 100%
(appointed on 20 April 2018) PIA =+ HEZ(T)

Mr. Sung Lok Man Richard REESFKE (F/FE) N/A N/A
(Chairman) (resigned on (R=ZZF—NFHAHA=+H TiE A i A
20 April 2018) FFIF)

Mr. Lam Chun Fung ERELER-_F—/NF N/A N/A
(resigned on 20 April 2018) P9A =+ HEF) i A i A

Mr. Chan Lewis RS E(R-ZFE—/NF N/A N/A
(resigned on 20 April 2018) P9A =+ HEF) i A i A

During the Year, the Audit and Compliance Committee has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control policies,
the risk management and internal control systems of the
Company. During the Year and up to the date of this
report, the Audit and Compliance Committee considered
that the internal controls and risk management functions
of the Company were reasonable, effective and sufficient.

During the Year, the Audit and Compliance Committee
has performed its duties strictly in accordance with the
relevant regulatory requirements, corporate governance
rules and the rules of procedure of the Audit and
Compliance Committee of the listing place of the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES (continueq)

4.2

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration
Committee in accordance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and the Code, and has expressly stated the
scope of job duties of such committee in writing. The
Remuneration Committee consists of four members,
namely Ms. Lam Hoi Yu Nicki, Mr. Liu Tin Lap and
Mr. Lau Leong Yuen (appointed on 20 April 2018
respectively) and Mr. He Xiaoming (appointed on 13 April
2018). Mr. Chan Leung Choi, Mr. Chan Lewis and Mr.
Sung Lok Man Richard ceased to be the members of
the Remuneration Committee since their resignation as
Executive Director on 13 April 2018 and Independent
Non-executive Directors on 20 April 2018, respectively.
Mr. Lam Chun Fung was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 13 April 2018 and ceased
to be the member of the Remuneration Committee since
his resignation as Independent Non-executive Director
on 20 April 2018. Except for Mr. Chan Leung Choi who
was an Executive Director and Mr. He Xiaoming who is
an Executive Director, all other members are Independent
Non-executive Directors. Ms. Lam Hoi Yu Nicki is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are to establish and review the policy and
structure of the remuneration for the Directors and senior
management, to establish the performance evaluation
standard, procedures and system, to annually evaluate the
performance of the Directors and senior management, to
make corresponding recommendations to the Board, and
to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned
by the Board.

The emoluments of the Executive Directors are
determined based on the skills, knowledge, individual
performance as well as contributions, the scope of
responsibility and accountability of such Directors, taking
into consideration the Company’s performance and
prevailing market conditions. The remuneration policy of
the Independent Non-executive Directors is to ensure
that they are adequately compensated for their efforts
and time dedicated to the Company’s affairs including
their participation in respective Board committees. The
emoluments of Independent Non-executive Directors
are determined with reference to their skills, experience,
knowledge, duties and market trends.

4.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES continvea) 4. ZEBEEZEET(#»)
4.2 Remuneration Committee (Continued) 4.2 %ﬁﬁiﬂéﬁ: (#4)
During the Year, 1 meeting was held by the Remuneration RAEE FHEESE BT —
Committee. The attendance record of each member of KRB o #ﬁﬁ)ﬂ§ EEFEKEZ
the Remuneration Committee is set out below: HERERE T
Number of
meetings
attended/ Attendance
should attend rate
BHE
Name of committee members ZEEREH S EHEEeHREHE HEER
Ms. Lam Hoi Yu Nicki (Chairman)  #eliniz+ (£ /Z) 1/1 100%
(appointed on 20 April 2018) (R=ZF—-NFWA=+H
EZA(T)
Mr. He Xiaoming (appointed on MERLEER=-_F—NF 1/1 100%
13 April 2018) A+ =HEZE)
Mr. Lau Leong Yuen (appointed on BIER %4 (R - F—NF 1/1 100%
20 April 2018) A=+ HEZE)
Mr. Liu Tin Lap B X EHE 1/1 100%
(appointed on 20 April 2018) R=ZF—-NFWA=+H
EZAT)
Mr. Chan Lewis (Chairman) RSk A (FE) N/A N/A
(resigned on 20 April 2018) (R=ZF—-NFWA=+H i A i A
FIE)
Mr. Chan Leung Choi (resigned on BRIR# 4 (R - F— N F N/A N/A
20 April 2018) A=+ HEHF) 3 i
Mr. Sung Lok Man Richard REXHERZFE-NF N/A N/A
(resigned on 20 April 2018) A=+ HEHF) 3 i

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee has
performed its duties strictly in accordance with the
relevant regulatory requirements, corporate governance
rules and the rules of procedure of the Remuneration
Committee of the listing place of the Company.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES (continueq)

4.3

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee
in accordance with the Code, and has expressly stated
the scope of job duties of such committee in writing.
The Nomination Committee consists of four members,
namely Mr. Lau Leong Yuen, Mr. Liu Tin Lap and Ms. Lam
Hoi Yu Nicki (appointed on 20 April 2018 respectively)
and Mr. He Xiaoming (appointed on 13 April 2018). Mr.
Chan Leung Choi, Mr. Chan Lewis and Mr. Lam Chun
Fung ceased to be the members of the Remuneration
Committee since their resignation as Executive Director
on 13 April 2018 and Independent Non-executive
Directors on 20 April 2018, respectively. Mr. Sung Lok
Man Richard was appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee on 13 April 2018 and ceased to
be the member of the Nomination Committee since his
resignation as the Independent Non-executive Director
on 20 April 2018. Except for Mr. Chan Leung Choi who
was an Executive Director and Mr. He Xiaoming who is
an Executive Director, all other members are Independent
Non-executive Directors. Mr. Lau Leong Yuen is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the scale,
structure and composition of the Board and on the
nomination of Directors, to review the director and senior
management candidates, to review the independence of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the
Board.

4.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES (contives) 4. ZEBEEEE )

4.3 Nomination Gommittee (Continued) 4.3
During the Year, 2 meetings were held by the Nomination
Committee. The attendance record of each member of
the Nomination Committee is set out below:

RBEAZEEE(H)

RAREE REREGCBTM
ReZ - REZEEBHAKEBZ
HE eI T

Number of
meetings
attended/ Attendance
should attend rate
BHE
Name of committee members ZEEHEHRH EHEEeHREHE HEER
Mr. Lau Leong Yuen (Chairman) EREE(FE) 2/2 100%
(appointed on 20 April 2018) (R=ZF—-NFWA=+H
EZ(F)
Mr. He Xiaoming (appointed on MERLEER=-_F—NF 2/2 100%
13 April 2018) MmA+=HEZT)
Ms. Lam Hoi Yu Nicki el z + 2/2 100%
(appointed on 20 April 2018) R=ZF—-NFWA=+H
EZ(F)
Mr. Liu Tin Lap BRI EE 2/2 100%
(appointed on 20 April 2018) R=ZF—-NFWA=+H
EZ(F)
Mr. Chan Leung Choi (Chairman) — BRARM %4 (F /&) N/A N/A
(resigned on 13 April 2018) (R=ZF—NFEMHA+=H i@ A TiE A
BFHE)
Mr. Chan Lewis (resigned on Bkt (R=ZF—NF N/A N/A
20 April 2018) /A =+ HEFE) TiE A TiE A
Mr. Lam Chun Fung (resigned on B %4+ (R =-ZF—NF N/A N/A
20 April 2018) A=+ HEHF) T A TiE A

During the Year, the Nomination Committee has
performed its duties strictly in accordance with the
relevant regulatory requirements, corporate governance
rules and the rules of procedure of the Nomination
Committee of the listing place of the Company.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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BOARD DIVERSIFICATION POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) since the Listing Date. With a view to
achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the Board Diversity
Policy and review its Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to
ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will discuss
any revisions that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for consideration and approval.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
composition of the Board and concluded that the Company had
met the diversification requirements with regard to age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. When making the appointment and re-appointment
of Directors in the future, the Nomination Committee will
nominate new Directors pursuant to the requirements of the
Board Diversity Policy to achieve the objective of diversity in
Board members.

NOMINATION POLICY

According to the nomination policy adopted by the Company
(the “Nomination Policy”), the Nomination Committee shall
nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to consider
and make recommendations to the Shareholders for election as
Directors at general meetings or appointment as Directors to fill
casual vacancies with reference to various factors to assess the
suitability of a proposed candidate. The Nomination Committee
shall ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board and the senior management are accountable for the
overall responsibility in respect of monitoring the implementation
of internal control and risk management procedures and other
measures in the Group. The Company’s risk management and
internal control system aims at managing but not eliminating
the risk of not being able to achieve the business objectives.
Moreover, only reasonable but not absolute warranties can be
given for statements which are not materially untrue or will not
result in material losses.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board believed that the Company’s risk
management and internal control system is effective and
sufficient, and is satisfied that the Group has fully complied with
the Code in respect of internal controls during the Year.

We have appointed external professional advisors (including the
auditor, legal or other advisors) for provision of professional
advice in respect of how we observe applicable laws and
regulations.

The Board has reviewed the need for an internal audit function
and are of the view that in light of the size, nature and
complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet
its needs.

During the Year, the Group appointed Corporate Governance
Professionals Limited (formerly known as Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Risk Assurance Limited) (“CGPL”) to

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

° independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit and Compliance Committee and the
Board. Moreover, improvements in internal control and risk
management measures as recommended by CGPL to enhance
the risk management and internal control systems, and risk
mitigating measures of the Group were adopted by the Board.
Based on the findings and recommendations of CGPL, as well
as the comments from the Audit and Compliance Committee,
the Board considered the internal control and risk management
systems effective and adequate.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(Continued)

Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management
framework. While the Board has the overall responsibility to
ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing
internal control systems to manage all kinds of risks faced by
the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritised and allocated treatments.
The Group’s risk management framework follows the COSO
Enterprise Risk Management — Integrated Framework, which
allows the Board and management to manage the risks of the
Group effectively. The Board receives regular reports through
the Audit and Compliance Committee that oversees risk
management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

The following principal risks of the Group were identified and
classified into compliance risks, financial risks, operational risks
and strategic risks during the Year.

7.

Risk Areas Principal Risks
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Financial Risks
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Operational Risks
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No significant risk identified
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No significant risk identified
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Risk of over-concentration of customers and suppliers

EERHERAESTHRR

Increase in labour costs and labour shortages
BIXAEARSITER

Strategic Risks
R BE &

Compliance Risk

This is the risk of exposure to legal penalties and/or financial
loss due to the fact that the Group fails to comply with the
relevant laws and regulations as well as internal policies. This
also includes reputation risk.

No significant risk identified
I % B B E KA R
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(Continued)

Financial Risk

The financial risk is associated with the financial impacts of the
transactions, which covers credit risk, liquidity risk, exchange
rate risk and interest rate risk, etc.

Operational Risk

The operational risk results from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and system. This includes fraud risk, vendor
outage and/or processing errors, etc.

Strategic Risk

The current and prospective adverse impact on earnings and/
or capital arises from adverse business development decisions,
improper strategic decision-making process, and/or lack of
responsiveness to industry changes, etc..

Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence model” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance team
and independent internal audit function outsourced to and
conducted by CGPL. The Group has adopted risk management
policy and procedures (the “Risk Management Policy”) and
maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major risks
of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the Audit and
Compliance Committee, and management with a profile of its
major risks and records management’s action taken to mitigate
the relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based
on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon the
Group. The risk register is updated by management as the risk
owners with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing
risks, if applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk
evaluation has been performed. This review process can ensure
that the Group proactively manages the risks faced by it in the
sense that all risk owners have access to the risk register and
are aware of and alert to those risks in their area of responsibility
so that they can take follow-up action in an efficient and timely
manner.

The Group’s risk management activities are performed by
management on an ongoing basis. The effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management framework is evaluated at
least annually, and periodic management meeting is held to
update the progress of risk monitoring efforts. Management
is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of
the daily business operation processes in order to align risk
management with corporate goals in an effective manner.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

(Continued)

Risk Gontrol Mechanism (Continued)

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management annually to further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company places a great emphasis on inside information
management. For purposes of strengthening the confidentiality
of inside information, maintaining the fairness of information
disclosure and protecting the legal interests and rights of the
vast number of investors, the Company’s information disclosure
system and mechanism is established in accordance with the
Listing Rules and domestic or foreign laws, regulations and
other regulatory requirements. Since the Listing Date, the
Company has strictly developed information disclosure pursuant
to the regulatory requirements and expressly stipulated that
the Board shall manage in uniform manner and be responsible
for the Company’s information disclosure. Moreover, detailed
provisions in respect of the managerial responsibility of the
Directors, senior management and officers in charge of
branches or subsidiaries shall be made.

THE DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company has not encountered with any significant and
uncertain events and circumstances that might produce
significant doubts on the Company’s capability of its continuous
operation of business. The Board has confirmed that it is
responsible for the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as at 31 March 2019.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

For the Year, the Company has appointed Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, an international
accounting firm, to provide the Company with auditing service
and the remuneration amounted to approximately HK$2.0
million. The responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as to
the consolidated financial statements are set out on pages 61
to 63 of this annual report.

Non-audit services provided to the Group during the Year of
approximately HK$0.5 million for review of interim results and
approximately HK$0.1 million for other non-audit services.
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10. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
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10.1

10.2

Shareholders have the right to initiate and convene the
general meeting

In accordance with the provisions
Association of the Company, the
be entitled to the following right: Any one or more
Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

of the Articles of
Shareholders shall

There is no provision in the Articles of Association setting
out procedures for the Shareholders to put forward a
resolution at general meetings. Shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director
by the Shareholders, please refer to the procedures
available on the website of the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders are welcome to suggest proposals relating
to the operations, strategy and/or management of the
Group at a general meeting. Proposals shall be sent to
the Board or the company secretary of the Company
by written requisition to the company secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit B, 13/F., Eton Building, 288 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continueq)

10.3 Shareholders are entitled to the inquiry right
Shareholders are entitled to make enquiries of which the
Board should pay attention, directly to the Company at
its principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit B,
13/F., Eton Building, 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong. The Company will deal with all enquiries in a timely
and appropriate manner.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that effective communications with the
Shareholders is essential to enhancement of the relationship
with investors and enhancement of investors’ understanding
of the Company’s business and strategies. The Company
highly values Shareholders’ opinions and suggestions, and
actively organises and conducts various activities related to the
relationship with investors in order to keep the communications
with Shareholders, and to timely satisfy the reasonable demands
of all Shareholders.

To enhance effective communication, the Company maintains
its website at www.yukwing.com where latest information
on the Company’s business operations and developments,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful
platform for direct communication between the Board and
Shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue at the general meetings.
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(Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company held 1
general meeting, which was the annual general meeting held on
22 August 2018. The attendance record of the general meetings

BRAXE#)

BE_ZT-NAF=ZA=+t—HL#HF
g ZIK/ATﬁﬂT RBR K G - B
ZE-NFNAZTZHETHERE

by the Directors was as follows: BERg EFENRERRELEOEF
eI
Number of
general
meetings
attended/
Name Position should attend Attendance
BHiES
EHER
%A B BERRXENRE HE =
Mr. He Xiaoming Executive Director, Chairman 11 100%
(appointed on 13 April 2018) of the Board and Chief
MEREER=ZF-/NF Executive Officer
A+ = HEZE) WMITESE FECXTRFH
TR
Mr. Wong Ka Shing Executive Director N/A N/A
(appointed on 9 January 2019) WITES i A i A
BERREER-_F-NF
—HNBEZE)
Ms. Lam Hoi Yu Nicki Independent Non-executive 11 100%
(appointed on 20 April 2018) Director
MEl Izt (R =ZF—/1F BYEHITES
mA =+ HEZT)
Mr. Lau Leong Yuen Independent Non-executive 11 100%
(appointed on 20 April 2018) Director
BEREER-_F—NF BYEHITES
mA =+ HEZT)
Mr. Liu Tin Lap Independent Non-executive 11 100%
(appointed on 20 April 2018) Director
BRIUKE(R-ZF-NEF BYEHITES
mA =+ HEZT)
Mr. Chan Tat Choi Executive Director 11 100%

(resigned on 8 November 2018)
REMEE(R=ZF-NF
+—H/HEE)
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A AL A S/ H
P EERWMS
GENERAL MEETINGS WITH SHAREHOLDERS 12 BRXE &
(Continued)
Number of
general
meetings
attended/
Name Position should attend Attendance
BHiES
EHE®
%A Bz BERRXENWRE HE =
Mr. Chan Leung Choi Executive Director, Chairman N/A N/A
(resigned on 13 April 2018) of the Board and Chief TEA TiE A
BRBRMEE(R-ZF-NEF Executive Officer
794+ = HEFE) WMITESE FE2EFFEHRT
2 g
Mr. Chan Kin Choi Executive Director N/A N/A
(resigned on 13 April 2018) WITES i A T A
BRIEM T (R ZF—/1F
A+ = HEHE)
Ms. Liang Ning Executive Director N/A N/A
(resigned on 13 April 2018) WITES i A T A
PEZT(RZF-NEF
A+ = HEHE)
Mr. Chan Lewis Independent Non-executive N/A N/A
(resigned on 20 April 2018) Director TEA TiE A
RLMEER=ZFE-NF BYEHITES
A=+ HEE)
Mr. Lam Chun Fung Independent Non-executive N/A N/A
(resigned on 20 April 2018) Director TR TiE A
EREEE(R-ZF-NEF BYEHITES
A=+ HEE)
Mr. Sung Lok Man Richard Independent Non-executive N/A N/A
(resigned on 20 April 2018) Director TR TiE A
REX K ERZFE-NF BYEHITES
A=+ HEE)
BHREEBEZERBRAR
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS

The Company believes that good relationship with investors may
help build more stable and consolidated shareholder base. As
a result, since the Listing Date, the Company has been and will
be dedicated to maintaining a higher degree of transparency,
observing the Listing Rules and timely providing investors
with comprehensive and accurate information, and sustainably
performing the obligation of disclosing the information of a listed
company. The Company will strengthen its communications with
investors and let investors understand corporate strategies and
business operation by organising road shows, participating in
investors summit, voluntary information disclosure and others.

The Company will continue to maintain open-up and effective
investors communication policies for purposes of timely
providing investors with the latest information on the Company’s
business when the Company is in compliance with the relevant
regulatory provisions.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company has amended the Articles of Association in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
amended Articles of Association have been effective since the
Listing Date. The Articles of Association have been published
on the website of the Stock Exchange and the website of the
Company. There have been no amendment made thereto the
Articles of Association since the Listing Date and up to the date
of this report.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELENERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. He Xiaoming (“Mr. He”), aged 45, is our chairman and
was appointed as our Executive Director and our chief executive
officer on 13 April 2018. He is a member of our Remuneration
Committee and our Nomination Committee.

Mr. He is an entrepreneur in various industries, including real
estate, manufacturing and distribution, etc. He also possesses
extensive business management, corporate planning and
property investment experience. Mr. He was the vice chairman
and an executive director of Teamway International Group
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1239) from 5 March 2015 to
2 April 2019.

Mr. Huang Shixin (“Mr. Huang”), aged 44, was appointed
as our Executive Director on 1 April 2019. Mr. Huang holds
a Bachelor of Economics degree in Finance from Renmin
University of China, and a Master of Science in Management
from the Stevens Institute of Technology. He has extensive
experience in business management, accounting, auditing and
financial management. Mr. Huang is currently the president of
Beijing Farlandciti Investment Co., LTD (it il & 2 E R E
B BR A &]), which is principally engaged in development and
management of real estates and hotels.

Mr. Wong Ka Shing (“Mr. Wong”), aged 40, was appointed
as our Executive Director on 9 January 2019. He also holds
directorship in a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Wong holds
a Bachelor of Arts (Hon) degree in Accounting and Finance
from The Leeds Metropolitan University. Mr. Wong is a member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in accounting,
auditing and financial management. Mr. Wong is the company
secretary and chief financial officer of China Financial Leasing
Group Limited, a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 2312) and an independent non-
executive director of Jete Power Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange since April 2015
(stock code: 8133). Mr. Wong was an independent non-
executive director of Long Success International (Holdings)
Limited, a company previously listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange from October 2013 to October 2016 (previous stock
code: 8017).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Lam Hoi Yu Nicki (“Ms. Lam”), aged 32, was appointed
as our Independent Non-executive Director on 20 April 2018.
She is the chairman of our Remuneration Committee and a
member of our Audit and Compliance Committee and our
Nomination Committee.

Ms. Lam obtained a bachelor’'s degree of science in Actuarial
Science from London School of Economics and Political
Science, University of London. Ms. Lam has experiences in
business management, financial and corporate secretarial
services. Ms. Lam was an executive director of Cornerstone
Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as Focus Media
Network Limited) (stock code: 8112), a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange, from 28 June 2016 to 12 January
2018.

Mr. Lau Leong Yuen (“Mr. Lau”), aged 34, was appointed as
our Independent Non-executive Director on 20 April 2018. He
is the chairman of our Nomination Committee, and a member
of our Audit and Compliance Committee and our Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor’'s degree of engineering in
electronic and communication from the City University of Hong
Kong in 2008 and a master degree of science in E-Commerce
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2011. Mr. Lau is
currently a senior information technology analyst in a leading
air cargo terminal operator in Hong Kong. Mr. Lau has over
9 years of experience in software engineering and information
technology system development. Mr. Lau currently serves as
an independent non-executive director of China Environmental
Energy Investment Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 986).

Mr. Liu Tin Lap (“Mr. Liu”), aged 36, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 20 April 2018. He is
the chairman of our Audit and Compliance Committee, and a
member of our Remuneration Committee and our Nomination
Committee. Mr. Liu has over 10 years of experience in the
fields of accounting and auditing of listed companies in Hong
Kong. He obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts in accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2006. Mr. Liu has
been a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since July 2010. Mr. Liu currently
serves as the chairman and an executive director of Combest
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8190).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Leung Choi, aged 53, joined our Group in 1997 and
is responsible for overseeing the daily operational management
and the financial and business performance of our Group, as
well as for the overall strategy planning and management of
the Company’s business. Mr. Chan Leung Choi has nearly 29
years of experience in the engineering and DTH rockdrilling
tool industry, and is involved in the operational matters, our
manufacturing processes, contributing to engineering and
technical matters as well as being a key person of our sales and
marketing efforts locally and overseas. Mr. Chan Leung Choi
holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Group, and is
the general manager of Norry Tech, a subsidiary of our Group.
Mr. Chan Leung Choi was our Chairman and Executive Director
from 17 March 2016, and Chief Executive Officer from 18 July
2016, and resigned from those positions on 13 April 2018.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chan Leung Choi joined The
Hongkong Electric Co., Ltd. in 1989 as graduate trainee in the
training department and worked as an assistant environmental
engineer in the environment section of power plant services
department from 1991 to 1992. From 1992 to 1993, Mr. Chan
Leung Choi was an employee of a trading company engaged
in sales of building materials. He co-founded a construction
equipment trading company based in Hong Kong in 1994, and
was a shareholder and director of this company from 1994 to
1997.

Mr. Chan Leung Choi graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree of
engineering in mechanical engineering in 1989, and obtained his
master’s degree in business administration from The University
of Warwick in the United Kingdom in 1997. He was an associate
member of the Institution of Mechanical Engineers in the
United Kingdom in 1991 and was a member of the Institute of
Acoustics in the United Kingdom in 1992.

Mr. Chan Leung Choi is the husband of Ms. Liang Ning, our
former Executive Director, the brother of Mr. Chan Kin Choi
and Mr. Chan Tat Choi, our former Executive Directors and Ms.
Chan Yuen Ming, our senior management.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Chan Kin Choi, aged 46, joined our Group in 1997 and is
the product director of Top Mark, and the vice general manager
and a supervisor of Norry Tech, subsidiaries of the Group.
Mr. Chan Kin Choi has nearly 21 years of experience in the
DTH rockdrilling tool industry. He is responsible for the overall
management of business operations, and is also in charge of
our engineering and technical processes. He also participates
actively in our sales and marketing efforts. Mr. Chan Kin Choi
holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Group. He was
our Executive Director from 17 March 2016 to 13 April 2018.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Chan Kin Choi worked for a
construction equipment trading company based in Hong Kong.
Mr. Chan Kin Choi was awarded a higher diploma in electronic
engineering by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Hong
Kong in 1994.

Mr. Chan Kin Choi is the brother of Mr. Chan Leung Choi and
Mr. Chan Tat Choi, our former Executive Directors, the brother
of Ms. Chan Yuen Ming, our senior management, and the
brother-in-law of Ms. Liang Ning, our former Executive Director.

Mr. Chan Tat Choi, aged 43, joined our Group in 1999 in the
sales and marketing department, and is currently responsible
for the management of our sales and marketing operations both
locally and overseas. He has nearly 19 years of experience in
the engineering and DTH rockdrilling tool industry. He was our
Executive Director from 17 March 2016 to 8 November 2018.

Mr. Chan Tat Choi graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree of science in
applied mathematics in 1999.

Mr. Chan Tat Choi is the brother of Mr. Chan Leung Choi and
Mr. Chan Kin Choi, our former Executive Directors, and the
brother of Ms. Chan Yuen Ming, our senior management, and
the brother-in-law of Ms. Liang Ning, our former Executive
Director.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continuec)

Ms. Liang Ning, aged 39, joined our Group in 2007 as a
director of Norry Tech, our subsidiary, and is responsible
for management of the operations of our factory located in
the Shunde District, Guangdong Province, PRC (“Shunde
Factory”), including overseeing the day-to-day operations of
our manufacturing operations, maintenance of our machines
at our Shunde Factory, as well as being responsible for the
overall administrative, legal and compliance work of our Shunde
Factory and human resources management of our production
team at our Shunde Factory. Ms. Liang has nearly 11 years of
experience in the DTH rockdrilling tool industry. Ms. Liang is
the executive director and a legal representative of Norry Tech.
She was our Executive Director from 17 March 2016 to 13 April
2018.

Ms. Liang completed her education specialising in law from The
Open University of China in the PRC in 2014.

Ms. Liang is the wife of Mr. Chan Leung Choi, our former
Executive Director and the sister-in-law of Mr. Chan Kin Choi
and Mr. Chan Tat Choi, our former Executive Directors, and
Ms. Chan Yuen Ming, our senior management.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ming, aged 48, is our factory control manager.
She joined our Group in January 2010 and is responsible
for the administration and coordination of the manufacturing
process of our Group. She is in charge of managing orders
from customers, monitoring our work orders and coordinating
the production schedules at our Shunde Factory, procurement
of raw materials required by our manufacturing processes,
inventory management, and managing the shipping and
export of the products from our Shunde Factory in the PRC
to Hong Kong and overseas including the delivery of the final
manufactured products to our customers and attending to
all administrative and compliance issues including handling of
warranty claims.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continuec)

Ms. Chan Yuen Ming has nearly 8 years of experience in
the DTH rockdrilling tool industry and more than 15 years
experience in sales and merchandising. Prior to joining
our Group, Ms. Chan Yuen Ming worked as an assistant
merchandiser at Famous Horse Garment Factory Ltd. from
July 1994 to June 1995 and at Caitac (Hong Kong) Limited
from September 1995 to August 1996. She worked as a junior
merchandiser at Mutual Bond International Ltd. In November
1996 and then was promoted to merchandiser in March 1997
and left the company in July 1997. She subsequently served as
a senior merchandiser from August 1997 to June 2002 at Lever
Shirt Limited. Ms. Chan Yuen Ming also worked at LF Centennial
Services (Hong Kong) Limited as a senior merchandiser in the
women woven team from June 2002 to May 2007, and served
as a senior merchandiser at Quicksilver Asia Sourcing Limited
from May 2007 to June 2009.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ming graduated from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic (currently known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) in Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree of science
in textiles in November 1994.

Ms. Chan Yuen Ming is the sister of Mr. Chan Tai Choi, Mr
Chan Leung Choi and Mr. Chan Kin Choi, our former Executive
Directors, and the sister-in-law of Ms. Liang Ning, our former
Executive Director.

Mr. Chow Jonathan Edward Chun-chung, aged 35, is the
chief financial officer of our Company. He joined our Group in
April 2016 as financial controller and was appointed as chief
financial officer and company secretary of our Company in
July 2016. Mr. Chow is responsible for overseeing our Group’s
financial and accounting operations and internal controls, and
provides financial and business advices to the Board and senior
management of our Group.

Mr. Chow has extensive experience in the areas of accounting,
finance, management and auditing. Mr. Chow started his career
with PricewaterhouseCoopers, an international accounting firm,
in Hong Kong. Before joining our Group, Mr. Chow was the
chief financial officer of a company engaged in the businesses
of distribution and retailing of branded consumer goods.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continuec)

Mr. Chow graduated from the School of Oriental and African
Studies, University of London in the United Kingdom with a
bachelor’s degree of science in economics. Mr. Chow is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is currently a
committee member of the Professional Accountants in Business
Committee of the HKICPA, and was a committee member of
the Young Members Committee of the HKICPA.

Mr. Chow holds positions of company secretary in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He was the company secretary of
our Company and resigned from the position on 20 April 2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Choi Yee Man was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company on 20 April 2018. Ms. Choi holds a bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration from The City University of
Hong Kong. Ms. Choi started her career in an international
accounting firm and is a fellow member of the HKICPA. Ms.
Choi possesses extensive experience in the area of accounting,
finance, auditing and corporate secretarial matters. Ms. Choi
was also an independent non-executive director of PacRay
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1010). She was the
company secretary of Teamway International Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1239) from June 2015 to May 2019.

SREEE »

AEAEEENEEAGRAASEFBE
WEEEEBIBE LB - Gkt R
EBeHMAoe ((BREHMAR])
ERREBRERBEAB ST e:
MAREE - REABEEIMAS
MAREHMEEERE LABEE

A AEEFEEEEKEBERLE -

BAERELEARAETHBERARZ
NAMERML - WRARF AR MW
ER-_ZE-N\FOA-_THBEZ
BB -

AEHE

EHEELLTERN T N\FNA -+
BEZAAEARAARINARME 8L
TRHEEEETAEER 2 IHER
BB B THBEEERN—
BEEESAMELR BRABAEE
MAEEFREE - BLTHNE
BB MCEWEEHEEHERE
BB -BLITNAEATHBIERA
RAG(—MEBXAMERLEMAG -
FEAD AR © 1010) B IEAITES o
R —_E—RAF~AZ-_ZT—NFH
H & ATeamway International Group
Holdings Limited (—fEIE# 22 BT E 4R L7
ANE BRDASR 1230 AR RE -

BREBMEZERERAT
2018/19%F 3R 43



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEWME

The Directors hereby presents the annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.

A4

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and details
of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note
32 to the consolidated financial statements. There was no
significant change in the Group’s principal activities during the
Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Details of business review and future development of the
Group’s business are set out respectively in the sections
headed “Business review” and “Strategy and Prospects” under
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report,
and details of principal risks and uncertainties are set out in the
sections under “Risk Management and Internal Controls” of the
“Corporate Governance Report”.

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business
depends on the support from its key stakeholders, including
employees, customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and
shareholders. During the Year, there were no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its key stakeholders.
The Group will continue to ensure effective communication and
maintain good relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2019 are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 64
of this report.

The Board does not recommend the distribution of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019.
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SHARE CAPITAL

The Company’s shares were successfully listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange on 11 January 2017.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2019, the Company’s issued share
capital was HK$38,000,000 and the number of its issued
ordinary shares was 380,000,000 of HK$0.1 each.

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

According to the dividend policy adopted by the Company,
the Board shall consider, among others, (i) the interest of the
shareholders; (i) statutory and regulatory restrictions; (i) the
actual and expected financial results of the Group; (iv) factors
having impacts on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group; (v) the Company’s business strategy; and
(vi) the current and expected operations, liquidity position and
capital requirements of the Group; and (vi) the possible effects
on the Group’s credit-worthiness, the financial covenants to
which the Group is subject and any restrictions on the payment
of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s lenders.
Further, the Company’s declaration of dividends is also subject
to the compliance with the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association, the Listing Rules, and applicable laws
and regulations.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. As
a responsible corporation, the Group has complied with
all relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and
employment and has endeavored to incorporate sustainability
practices into the policies and procedures. By adopting
green operational practices, the Group strives to reduce the
environmental impacts caused by the operations.

In accordance with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules, the
Company will publish an Environmental, Social and Governance
(“ESG”) Report on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange with the provisions set out in the ESG Reporting
Guide in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
the applicable rules and regulations. To the best knowledge of
the Directors, the Group has complied in material respects with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the business and operation of the Group during the Year.
There was no material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group for the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where
the Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

RESERVES

The details in relation to the changes in the reserves of the
Group during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 66 of this annual report. The
Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 March 2019 are approximately HK$81,468,000.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group is set out on page 143 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.
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14. DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. He Xiaoming (Chairman) (appointed on 13 April 2018)

Mr. Huang Shixin (appointed on 1 April 2019)

Mr. Wong Ka Shing (appointed on 9 January 2019)
Mr. Chan Kin Choi (resigned on 13 April 2018)

Mr. Chan Leung Choi (resigned on 13 April 2018)
Ms. Liang Ning (resigned on 13 April 2018)

Mr. Chan Tat Choi (resigned on 8 November 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Lam Hoi Yu Nicki (@appointed on 20 April 2018)

Mr. Lau Leong Yuen (appointed on 20 April 2018)
Mr. Liu Tin Lap (appointed on 20 April 2018)

Mr. Chan Lewis (resigned on 20 April 2018)

Mr. Lam Chun Fung (resigned on 20 April 2018)

Mr. Sung Lok Man Richard (resigned on 20 April 2018)

The Company has received the confirmation of the
independence issued by the Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
is of the opinion that all Independent Non-executive Directors
are independent of the Company.

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. Lau Leong Yuen and Ms. Lam Hoi Yu
Nicki shall retire from office as the Independent Non-executive
Director at the AGM and each of them, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election respectively.

In accordance with the Article 83(3) the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. Huang Shixin and Mr. Wong Ka Shing as
the Executive Directors shall retire from office at the AGM and
each of them, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
respectively.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Details of the biographies of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 37 to 43 of
this annual report.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

No Director eligible for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out
in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (AND THEIR
CONNECTED ENTITIES) IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors
(and their connected entities) is or was materially interested,
directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance entered into by the Company or its controlling
shareholders or any of their respective subsidiaries at any time
during the Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the Year.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors nor their associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) had any competing interests in
such business that is in direct or indirect competition with any
of the Group’s business.
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20. THE INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV the
SFO), which are required (i) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the provisions of Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); (i) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
(iii) pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Name of associated Capacity/ Number of the Company

Name of Director corporation Nature of Interest Shares (share)® (%)

NN

2RITRAK
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Mr. He Xiaoming®  Colour Shine Interest in a controlled 188,192,000 (L) 49.52%

EE:PAE g corporation 188,192,000 (S)® 49.52%

RAEEEE R
Table Notes: KIEM T -

1) The Letter “L” denotes a person’s long position (as defined under part 1) [LIRAZATER@EBROFPFFBENGTE

XV of the SFO) in such Shares. The Letter “S” denotes a person’s short
position (as defined under part XV of the SFO) in such Shares.

) 188,192,000 Shares are held by Colour Shine whose entire issued share
capital is held by Mr. He Xiaoming. Mr. He Xiaoming is also the sole
director of Colour Shine as at 31 March 2019.

) Colour Shine has charged 188,192,000 Shares to Kingston Securities
Limited as security as at 31 March 2019 pursuant to the share charge
entered into between Kingston Securities Limited as chargee and Colour
Shine as charger dated 1 February 2018.
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20. THE INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

o0

THE DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of the
Directors was a director or employee of a company which
had an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of
the SFO and none of the Directors, the chief executive of the
Company nor their associates had any other interests or short
positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which any such Director or the
chief executive of the Company is taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required to be
entered into the register maintained by the Company, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) were required to be notified
to the Company or the Stock Exchange, pursuant to the Model
Code.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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21. SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2019, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of Part
XV of the SFO shows the following shareholders had notified
the Company of relevant interests and short positions, being
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:

(i) Substantial Shareholders of the Company

21, TERRRAQTRBGBR

HEAR G HI RS RS

=

R-ZE-NAF=ZA=+—HB X217
RIEFE F5 KR R B EXVED £3361%
FENECMBRRIATERRERE 3G
NAEIEBITIRAS%NIA F R MBS
FoRBMEARRQT :

) ALDFEERR

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Number of the Company

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares (share)™ (%)

(R NN

ERITRAE

REREE EEME KRG8 (R)W B 2 (%)

Colour Shine Beneficial owner 188,192,000 (L) 49.52%

IR E EnlEBA 188,192,000 (S)® 49.52%

Mr. He Xiaoming® Interest of a controlled 188,192,000 (L) 49.52%

BEED A corporation 188,192,000 (S)© 49.52%
RIEEE R

Mr. Chan Leung Choi Beneficial owner 19,188,000 (L) 5.05%

BRAR M 5 4 BEmEB A
Table Notes:
(1) The Letter “L” denotes a person’s long position (as defined under

part XV of the SFO) in such Shares. The Letter “S” denotes a
person’s short position (as defined under part XV of the SFO) in

such Shares.

2) 188,192,000 Shares are held by Colour Shine whose entire issued
share capital is held by Mr. He Xiaoming. Mr. He Xiaoming is also
the sole director of Colour Shine as at 31 March 2019.

3 Colour Shine has charged 188,192,000 Shares to Kingston
Securities Limited as security as at 31 March 2019 pursuant to the
share charge entered into between Kingston Securities Limited as
chargee and Colour Shine as charger dated 1 February 2018.

FER AT

)

[LIRRZ AL EBRRD T AR
Mife (CERREFRBEGKIE
XVER) o [SIRTZALTEREK
DHAFEAR (EERLESZRD
B IRBIEXVE) -

188,192,000/% ik ) R 1= 35 -
MEBz2HEETRARME
BHELERE R HF=A
=+ -8B AXALETRAEIEN
H—EE-

R-ZZE-—AE=ZA=Z+—8 R
BEBA-ZT-NF-_A—1"
HefEEHFARAR (ERER
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22,

b2

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
(ii) Substantial Shareholders of Other Members of the Group

Name of subsidiary of the Company

21,

Name of Shareholder

FEREARQTRSGR
HHEARMGOERS R %
B

AEEHMEKERANEE
IR

(i)

Approximate
percentage of the
total issued share

capital in our

subsidiary (%)

LK B A A
EEITRA
HERD

b NS =N BR®E B 7 k(%)

Tristate International Mr. Chan Lap Wai Gary (Note) 49%

B b B BR PR S48 % & (7 27)

Norry Tech Mr. Chan Lap Wai Gary 49%

A= PR S48 % A&

Note: Dawn Success Ltd, a company wholly-owned by Ms. Vane Siu Ling K1i# © Dawn Success Ltd @ — [ Rz
Linda, wife of Mr. Chan Lap Wai Gary, holds the 49% holdings in BEESTBNERLTEERE
Tristate International on trust for Mr. Chan Lap Wai Gary. AR UERARRRRILE

SR A B O B FR40% AR 4 o
Save as disclosed above, our Directors are not aware of any B EXFTiEEEIN BEEATAN WM

person who has an interest or a short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares which is required to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or to be recorded in
the register placed in the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO, or is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company
or any of our subsidiaries.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Year, the Group did not enter into any contracts
in respect of the management and administration of all or any
significant portion of the business (except for such service
contracts entered into with the Group’s Directors and all
employees) and there existed no such contracts in respect of
the management and administration of all or any significant
portion of the business (except for such service contracts
entered into with the Group’s Directors and all employees).

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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23. CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS 23. AEXS
We have entered into some transactions with connected BZMEHEARNRRBEEALIZLE TR
persons of the Company. In accordance with Chapter 14A 5 o iRIE EMRANE14AK  ZEFERD
of the Listing Rules, such transactions have constituted the EEEARFTNBER I IIFERE
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions of 5o

the Company.

23.1 Continuing Gonnected Transaction — Lease Agreement
On 1 December 2015, Top Champion Industries
Limited entered into a lease agreement with Top Mark
Mechanical Equipment Limited (“Top Mark”) (the
“Lease Agreement”), pursuant to which Top Champion
Industries Limited as lessor agreed to lease to Top Mark
as lessee the premises situated at Unit 9, 15/F, Honour
Industrial Centre, 6 Sun Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong
(the “Chai Wan Premises”) for use as our industrial
warehouse in Hong Kong for a term commencing
from 1 December 2015 to 30 November 2017, and
renewed for a term commencing from 1 December
2017 to 30 November 2019 at an agreed monthly rental
of HK$21,900 (excluding government rates, utilities,
management fees and other outgoings).

Top Champion Industries Limited is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability on 16 July
1999. It is owned as to 95% by Mr. Chan Leung Choi and
5% by Mr. Chan Kin Choi and therefore is an associate
of a connected person of our Company by virtue of Rule
14A.12(1)(c) of the Listing Rules.

Our rental expenses (excluding government rates, utilities,
management fees and other outgoings) in relation to
the leasing of the Chai Wan Premises for the Year is
approximately HK$263,000.

The rental amount payable by Top Mark under the
Lease Agreement was determined with reference to the
prevailing market rent at that time for similar premises.
Our Directors (including our Independent Non-executive
Directors) consider that it is in the interests of our
Company and Shareholders as a whole to enter into the
Lease Agreement.

231 HERAEXRS -HEWGE

RZZE—RF+_-_A—B8 %
BEXEBRAFIHEEREMEESR
AR (TEREM) T HEE R
Z(HEHRE]) B £EE
¥ERAFIEALEAN)BER
EREW (EAAEA) ERAZR
BBLBMEESR LT N TER
DIBBOE M & ISP ([ E &
EERDIERBMREANITE
BE FHHA-_ZFT-—AF+=A
—RBEE=_ZFT—+tF+—H=+
BB #%#%E A &21,900
BT (TBEERSHAE - KEH
Y BEEBRNEMAR)EE
e —E2—+tF+-_A—HEH
EZE-NF+—H=FH-

FEEEARAFAR—NANI
FLATAABEEBEMKIY
BRATR - AR CE RRE
W5 & 5 Bl # H95% k5% 1
z= o RE E R BIE14A.12(1)(c)
EAERAABEALHBEA -

RARFE  HJMEDHEEEEE
BHREBNESHESY (TERER
Pl - KBRS  EEEBRHE
5 %) 49 5263,0007 JT °

EREWMAREEE R EMHE
RS EZEBUSHERTHSHE
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25.

26.

217.

o4

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continuea)

23.1 Continuing Gonnected Transaction — Lease Agreement
(Continued)
Since each of the applicable percentage ratios (other
than the profit ratio) for the Lease Agreement is less than
5% on an annual basis, the total consideration is less
than HK$3,000,000, and the transaction is on normal
commercial terms, the transaction is fully exempt from
the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular, and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Details of the retirement and employee benefits plans of the
Group are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Being a company listed on the Stock Exchange, the Company
is always dedicated to maintaining the corporate governance
practices at a high level. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 14 to 36 of this
annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on publicly available information and to the knowledge of
the Directors, there is sufficient public float of at least 25% of
the Company’s issued shares throughout the year and as at the
date of this annual report, in compliance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the revenue attributable to our top five
customers was approximately HK$71.8 million (2018:
approximately HK$42.0 million), accounting for approximately
43.9% (2018: approximately 42.1%) of the total revenue of the
Group.

During the Year, our purchases from our top five suppliers
were approximately HK$50.7 million (2018: approximately
HK$29.4 million), accounting for approximately 55.2% (2018:
approximately 59.0%) of our total purchases.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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30.

31.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (continuec)

The Group’s top five customers and suppliers during the
reporting period were independent third parties, and none of
our Directors, their associates or any shareholder (who, to
the knowledge of our Directors, owned more than 5% of our
Company’s share capital as at the date of this report) had any
interest in any of our top five customers or suppliers during the
Year.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this report, subsequent to the end of the
Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the Group
has the following significant event:

(i) Mr. Huang Shixin has been appointed as the executive
Director on 1 April 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year, the Company (including but not limited to) had
purchased and maintained a group liability insurance for the
Directors of the Company and its “Associated Companies” (as
defined for such term under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)).

DONATIONS

The Group made charitable or other donations of approximately
HK$3,763,000 during the Year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended
31 March 2017 to 2019 have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment, at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
He Xiaoming
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 June 2019

In the event of any inconsistency, the English text of this annual report
shall prevail over the Chinese text.
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Deloitte

To the Shareholders of Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yuk
Wing Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 64 to 142,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that,

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

HREXREE

in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

FAREZEIR
FAREZSHEASREBATHERAEMS
RO AREEANBRENBEARSE
ENFEH REFERATEAEREAY
BREAMRELEEBERE  MATTEH
SZEFHERTERER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

FTETERRUARERBEERSEHR

Estimated write down of inventories

14 5t 77 & M6

We identified estimated write down of inventories as
a key audit matter due to the management’s use of
estimation, with reference to their industry knowledge
and experience, in assessing whether the carrying
amounts of inventories are recoverable.
RITERBAFEMRABNAREREREE  RAR
ERBEXRBHITEANBIERETHE FHFEE
HESE AR THWE -

Allowance for inventories was based on the
management’s assessment in estimating the net
realisable values of the inventories, after considering
the current market conditions, material price fluctuation
and subsequent usage or sales. As at 31 March 2019,
the Group’s inventories with carrying amounts of
HK$54,990,000 without any allowance for inventories
reoognised
ENRBEEEBKEZEREANMR EAEBRKES R
ﬁ&%ﬁ&%ﬁéﬁﬁﬂﬁ mﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁ
metRBEH - R_T-NAF=A=+—H  EEET’F
EEEETE%M,QQO,OOO/%E I?ﬂf\ﬁﬁw{%ﬂrfﬁéﬁ

Details relating to the Group’s inventories are set
out in notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Bl EXEFENFBENGAMBHRERM E4R16 -

Our procedures in relation to estimated write down of
inventories included:

AT A FERORMRKOIEF B

° Obtaining an understanding of the management’s
assessment in estimating the net realisable values
of the inventories;

s THERERGHMEFEREUERFEFELAOFMG

° Understanding the key controls of the Group
relating to the valuation of inventories;
e TR EEEHTFEMEETHTIEZEEEN:

° Discussing with the management and evaluating
the basis of net realisable values of inventories
determined by the management, based on the
management’s consideration for the current
market conditions, material price fluctuation and
subsequent usage or sales;

. HEBENRTTHEEBKBREZER ZE
*% BERERKBMHEEZEAENHEETNF

AR R EELE

o Testing the net realisable values of inventories, on a
sample basis, by tracing to the latest material price
or latest sales invoices; and

. FREEEMYHEBINEMEEER MK
EEHFEAERFEETAS &

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the historical
management’s assessment in assessing the
recoverability of the carrying amounts of the
inventories.

hd u:F{E IE@TEE%T@,\/
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Key audit matters

BREXER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RTETERRNMRERBREREE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 JE WK 5 E B E A1

We identified impairment assessment of trade receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the Group’s consolidated financial position
and the involvement of subjective judgement and
management estimates in evaluating the expected credit
losses (“ECL”) of the Group’s trade receivables at the
end of the reporting period.

RTHE S RKKIBRDRE A ABREZEE -
DEBSEKFEYE EEENGAMBRAIBERKR
& BERBEHPRAE EEENEZREFIENTE
HEEBER(RAYUGEBRDR IR IEHE KER
&t e

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s net trade receivables
amounting to HK$64,424,000, which represented
approximately 29.4% of total assets of the Group.
As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, in the current year, the Group adopted
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9 “Financial
Instruments” (HKFRS 9) and recognised an additional
impairment of HK$1,722,000 as at 1 April 2018 in
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKFRS 9.
RZE-NF=ZA=+—0  ESENEZHEKFIE
JH HE /64,424,000 T 15 EE BB EE£K29.4% °
WMER S BmEWT2M@ - EXEERAFERAE
B BmEENEORI ST A (EAVBREESF
o) WRBEBFEMBRELNFORAOBEKRI 1
—Z-N\FWA—-BERRBINEIE722,000/8 T °

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of
trade receivables included:

AITEBE S RWFANREFGENRERFEE

° Understanding key controls on how the
management estimates the loss allowance for trade
receivables;

c TREBERMHEMEERREBHEEER

° Testing the accuracy of the ECL adjustment made
by the Group as at 1 April 2018 on initial adoption
of HKFRS 9;

e A EEER_ZT-/N\FHUA-BULRAE
AU BRELENESRZAIELTEREEERAR
B ERE L

° Testing the accuracy of information used by
management in determining credit loss allowance
including trade receivables ageing analysis as at
1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019, on a sample
basis, by comparing individual items in the analysis
with the relevant sales agreements, sales invoices
and other supporting documents;

s BBRUREFERFIARKSTANEREE &
HEAHERZ HEEZREMEBRAXMG  HER
BREER_ZE-NFHA-BRZZE-HLF=
A=+—HBHEEERE®(BEZITMAABE
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Key audit matters

BREXER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RTETERRNMRERBREREE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

). L& & 0-4-1d"1

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group estimates the
amount of lifetime ECL of trade receivables individually
after considering internal credit ratings of trade debtors,
ageing, repayment history and/or past due status of
respective trade receivables. Estimated loss rates are
based on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information.

WMEREHMBHREWT4TEE - EEEERENEEE
SEBANRBEETR BRI - ERLERNAEH
B RWHRIEBEMAER  ERATE S EKKIARN
HEHEEFEN SR A EBEXDREBER
BEBAEFFHNBERAENENEET - WIRATIE
MERELFE -

As disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognised an additional amount
of HK$2,952,000 of impairment of trade receivables.
The Group’s lifetime ECL on trade receivables as at
31 March 2019 amounted to HK$2,603,000.

Wiz & MMk Io8mMiEsE - ESERFARES
JE YR IB #E5R2,952,000/8 TTHIFEINAE - EEEME
SRERWFEBR-_E—NLF=ZA=+—AN2HEHE
B & 182,603,000/ JT °

° Discussing with the management and evaluating the
basis in determining credit loss allowance on trade
receivables as at 1 April 2018 and 31 March 2019,
including the reasonableness of management’s
basis of estimated loss rates applied (with reference
to historical observed default rates and forward-
looking information); and

. HERENRITAEETEIRIKRER-_Z-N
FUA-—BERZZE-NAE=A=T—HHNEEHE
BRENEE OREEEMERMGAEREXE
E(EBE2ERLEEENERAIBELEERNEE
"R

° Evaluating the disclosures regarding the impairment
assessment of trade receivables in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

. IR B mEAMT28AE HE 5 EWKRIER
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AZ AN R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B Z AR S

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AZ AN R

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Faith Corazon Del Rosario.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

[ /_\ N\ / 7\ Hy \ / i%
meEEmMEMEEIRE
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE T —NF=A=1+—HILFE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E TER FET
Revenue W as 5 163,441 99,703
Cost of sales iz R= DN (97,084) (62,234)
Gross profit E 66,357 37,469
Other income and expenses H A A KB 2 6 2,108 202
Impairment losses, net of reversal  JF{E & 18 (0% & @) 7 (2,952) (1,179)
Other gains and losses Bz & EE 7 1,404 (872)
Selling and distribution expenses HE RN HAX (6,305) (4,806)
Administrative expenses TR X (33,773) (27,419)
Finance costs &b & Bl AR 8 (1,041) (473)
Profit before tax B B Bi& F 9 25,798 2,922
Income tax expense Frig B X 10 (6,033) (2,431)
Profit for the year F R 19,765 491
Profit (loss) for the year BT ATESFRRR
attributable to: (B 18):
Owners of the Company ViNNETE/ =N 13,859 (2,324)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 il #E 5 5,906 2,815
19,765 491
Other comprehensive (expense) FREMtZ2HE (BX)
income for the year I &=
Item that may be reclassified HAEAJFEER DR B
subsequently to profit or loss: H#yIE A -
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEBFIEER
translation of foreign operations EH =% (2,748) 3,265
Total comprehensive income FRE2EALYN=
for the year 17,017 3,756
Total comprehensive income DUTATELAFRZEA
(expense) for the year W (BAX):
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NETE? P =N 12,140 (651)
Non-controlling interests I 12 i 4 % 4,877 4,307
17,017 3,756
Earnings (loss) per share, basic I AR ZF (EE)
(HK cents) (AL 13 3.65 (0.61)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
sra MR

At 31 March 2019 ®=F—hF=A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\HF
NOt\eS HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 5E FTET FAT
Non-current assets EMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment NE - HERERE 14 11,228 10,905
Deposits placed at an insurance ERRB AR ZFER
company 15 4,514 4,426
Deferred tax assets EXERIBEEE 22 720 -
16,462 15,331
Current assets mENEE
Inventories BB 16 54,990 39,483
Trade and other receivables B 5 &3 J*ME W K 17 73,844 49,592
Tax recoverable A Yg B F 1A = 1,064
Bank balances and cash ROTEBERES 18 74,047 71,975
202,881 162,114
Current liabilities nBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K H b & FOR 19 16,295 19,511
Contract liabilities AHAE 20 163 -
Tax payable JFE BB 1R ) 7,900 1,771
Bank and other borrowings BITREMEE 21 25,202 1,697
49,650 22,979
Net current assets mBEEFE 153,231 139,135
Total assets less current liabilities ~— #2& E R T8 & & 169,693 154,466
Non-current liability EmEAaE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIE & & 22 - 68
169,693 154,398
Capital and reserves BEARAR#EE
Share capital & A 23 38,000 38,000
Reserves b 1% 99,939 89,521
Equity attributable to owners of the AR RIEEA A
Company FE (R R i 137,939 127,521
Non-controlling interests FEIE B = 31,754 26,877
169,693 154,398
The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 142 were FOAE142BE MR A M B MEREHES

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

27 June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

ER_T-NFABR-_TEBEHER
RETE  UH TIHEERREE

He Xiaoming Huang Shixin
O] EitE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EFE
BHREEBEZERBRAR

2018/19%F 3R



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

/\‘/T\

= N\ 7/
1":“:' AN /an Eb i%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 &#ZE—-=

—NE=B=+—RAIEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NEIE 2PN
Non-
Share Share ~ Merger Statutory Exchange Other Retained controlling
capital premium reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
RE ROEE HERE LERE ERGE HtHE REEA Nt FEHER @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
T TAT  TEx  FEx  TExT  FTErnL  FEx  TER THLT TARn
(note i) (note i)
(M) (B i)
At 1 April 2017 —t¥
MmA—H 38,000 124,553 (67,096) 652 (706) 19 32,650 128,072 22,570 150,642
(Loss) profit for the year ER(HR) AN - - - - - - 2.324)  (2,324) 2,815 491
Exchange differences arising ~ BE BN EH
on translation of foreign FEEMESR
operations =% - - - - 1,773 - - 1,773 1,492 3,265
Total comprehensive income FREELNE
(expense) for the year (%) - - - - 1,773 - (2,324) (551) 4,307 3,756
Transfer B - - - 60 - - (60) - - -
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-N\F
ZA=Z+-H 38,000 124,553 (67,096) 712 1,067 19 30,266 127,621 26,877 154,398
Adjustments (see note 2) HE(2ENH2) - - - - - - (1,722 (1,722 - (1,722)
At 1 April 2018 (restated) —-NEMA
(%«fiw) 38,000 124,553  (67,096) 712 1,067 19 28544 125799 26,877 152,676
Profit for the year F W/lm Fl - - - - - - 13,859 13,859 5,906 19,765
Exchange differences arising BB BINEK
on translation of foreign EENER
operations 8 - - - - 1,719 - - (1,719) (1,029) (2,748)
Total comprehensive (expense) F N2 EE (FI%)
income for the year I - - - - W9 - 13850 12,140 4877 17,017
Transfer B - - - 503 - - (503) - - -
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-nE=A
=+-H 38,000 124,553 (67,096) 1,215 (652) 19 41900 137,939 31,754 169,693
Note i:  Amount represents difference between the nominal value of the share capital  Miiti: ZAIBIEARTZ2EH B RARBLEEERERAQ
issued by Hang Wing Holdings Limited (“Hang Wing”), a wholly owned (B ARBEREMZEBEARAR(EBR
subsidiary of the Company, for the acquisition of the entire equity interests and W) BEEEEXERAR([HBEERE] -
the amount of share capital in Top Mark Mechanical Equipment Limited (“Top EREEREER A7 EMaxa RockDrills Limited
Mark”), Tristate International Industrial Limited (“Tristate International”), Top EEHBREMBITARAEAEREREREEESR
Glory Construction Equipment Limited and Maxa RockDrills Limited. MEEBREXERAR EREERER
fE /A &) &zMaxa RockDrills Limited i J% 48 E (& 2 %=
e
Note ii: Amount represents statutory reserve of B IL T IEE @A ETRRE AR L Wit ZRBEAAGAMBRRBLTIEERHEFNET

66

A] (Norry Tech Engineering Equipment Limited) (‘Norry Tech”), a subsidiary of
the Company. According to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), Norry Tech is required to transfer at least 10% of their net profit
after taxation, as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to a non-
distributable reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the distribution of a
dividend to owners. Such reserve fund can be used to offset the previous years’
losses, if any, and is non-distributable other than upon liquidation.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
/\‘/T\/\E/Edi//lb i%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE —T—NF=A=1+—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FAT
Operating activities L EE
Profit before tax B %54 A& A 25,798 2,922
Adjustments for: AT EEFE
Impairment losses, net of reversal JRE & 18 - FOBR [ 2,952 1,179
Depreciation of property, plant and Y- WmEREETE
equipment 1,973 1,261
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BEMERE
equipment & 18 406 -
Interest expense MERX 1,041 473
Interest income LB U A (118) (106)
Operating cash flows before movements in 2 EE ¢ EHRIL LR ERE
working capital 32,052 5,729
Increase in inventories FEE (15,418) (2,588)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K H fth pE W 3k I8 38 0 (29,324) (19,727)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other B 5 I H th & < 5038 O 2)
payables 0 (743) 12,771
Decrease in contract liabilities AHAaERY (2,550) -
Cash used in operations KEFANES (15,983) (3,815)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ENFEPERGERH (1,190) (47)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund (paid) EBFERENR (B 1,590 (5,177)
Net cash used in operating activities WEEBMARFHE (15,583) (9,039)
Investing activities BERD
Purchase of property, plant and EEME BELLE
equipment (5,269) (1,356)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BEMKEMS
plant and equipment RIE 80 -
Interest received BT E 30 20
Net cash used in investing activities REESMAR S FHE (5,159) (1,336)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

,\\/T\/\E/%i /)ILEE 2%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZ—=F

—NEFE=ZA=1T—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-AF — N\
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTER FAT
Financing activities ER-SEE)
New bank and other borrowings raised WgRIT N EMER 25,292 5,322
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE (1,697) (23,501)
Interest paid B F B (201) (473)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities B & EEFTE (FTA) R L F 5 23,394 (18,652)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash ¥ & NKIR&ZEWIEM
equivalents CR ) =5 2,652 (29,027)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of F#E 4 NI EZEY
the year 71,975 100,856
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXREHHFTE (580) 146
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the FXRIRERIREEEY
year, represented by bank balances BERTEHR IR
and cash 74,047 71,975
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

1.

BB HRR M T

GENERAL

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”’) was
incorporated and registered as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman lIslands under the Companies
Law Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the Company are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The registered office address of the Company is located at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business
of the Company was located at Unit B, 17/F., E-Trade Plaza,
No. 24 Lee Chung Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong and changed
to Unit 2102, 21/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong with
effective from 18 April 2018 and changed to Unit B, 13/F., Eton
Building, 288 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong with effect
from 23 November 2018. The Company’s ultimate holding
company is Colour Shine Investments Limited, a private limited
company incorporated in the British Virgin Island (the “BVI”).
The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
rockdrilling tools and equipment and trading of piling and drilling
equipment and machineries.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”) which is also the functional currency of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) for the first time in the current
year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” with HKFRS 4
“Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

2.

FE RIS aT B BB IS sR s
MET Tt LN
REBTA
RAFERFNENNNITE BN
BELEARHEEBITAR
AEEERAFEFTRNERTIES
BEFMAE((EBETMAR])E

ZN

BB B RE
% Bl 2895k
BB B RE
4E Rl 551555

&5 (BB 15
REREBER
Bg) -2k
225k

BB B RS
AR F25R
CHES)

BB B RS
AR F AR
CHES)

BE g £
5285k
CHES)

BE g £
£405%
CHES)

B T AT & 51
#a] & BB IS

R BB RE LR R EERT

SRIITE

REEFPAKN
Wat KB BER] A

SN 32 B TR A
RE

LARR 1 73 B 7 Y
NRXHZ
DEREE

ERAEBHEHRE
R FAE TR R
AW —GEA
BB RS %A
Folcm T A

ERBBEBHBRE
HERAZF—HEFEE
—E-RFRESZ
FREMEN—IH

BEYEEE

AEERRBZE

& AR R HAE T AN

AEBAFERBEFEZHBRE
EHBRRR/ ZEGEA T BRE
NAHEBEEARYLEEATE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current
year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts” and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard recognised at
the date of initial application, 1 April 2018. Any difference at the
date of initial application is recognised in the opening retained
profits (or other components of equity, as appropriate) and
comparative information has not been restated. Furthermore,
in accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS 15,
the Group has elected to apply the Standard retrospectively
only to contracts that were not completed at 1 April 2018.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”
and the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from (i) manufacturing and
trading of down-the-hole (“DTH”) rockdrilling tools; (ii) trading
of piling and drilling machineries; and (iii) trading of rockdrilling
equipment.

Information about the Group’s performance obligations and the
accounting policies resulting from the application of HKFRS 15
is disclosed in notes 5 and 3 respectively.

2.

BRI EBMEHREE
B (&8 EHmEERD])
REESTARE)
EEMBHREEAEIRFEER
EF&#HHkas]
AEEERAFEFTRNEREBHB
A5 AR E16% - BB I KRS LA
F155 A E B @ s & A F1857 [ I
% EHBEHEABNRIRELDN]
LEBRE-

AEECRPEBE BT IEHREER
F155 MERERZEANREY
EERN _T—NFONA—HEXEHR
EAER -REXEREBHNTME
BRBEORBET (R HEMEES
DUHER)) ER BT ESIHKRE
B-BE BRESEVBERELENSE
1I5RMBEGR  AEEEZEERR
TE- NEFENA-—BHEATKNEY
BPERZEL A ETFLEEE
R pE B IE BB gt ER E1855 [
HIREBSSERNBIFIEELSL]
NRAEREREE B EALE -

AEBERROVRENBEZTBEL(E
ANBET A (EEITHEK LB
B RNEBEREREAEURER -

ERASERNEEILREREENB
WEERFISEMELENEHEED
BE 7 B iE5 M3 B -

BREBMEZERERAT 7w
2018/19%F 3R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\\/T\

/2

BB HRR M T

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15

There was no material impact of transition to HKFRS 15 on
retained profits at 1 April 2018.

The following adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at
1 April 2018. Line items that were not affected by the changes
have not been included.

ERHIEEMBHREE
B((EEMBHRELEDD
REESTARE)
ESUBERSENESRFAR
Ea#mRaslE)

BAERE BB EERFE155 57
ELMZERE

RZZE-NFOA—B m&EEHE
HE AR F165% BRI | ERE R A
ERERVE -

R —_Z-N\FHUA-BZHEEYH
RRAKRFECHERSRELORELD
T -HESEIXEHTENMYIE
H o

Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 March 2018 Reclassification 1 April 2018
R=ZZ-N\F
5% AR mMA—H
—E-N\F BERMBE®RE
=H=+-—H Z R 581553
EHNEREE ENSE EHTEREE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAT

Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5 N AR RIE 19,511 (2,713) 16,798
Contract liabilities (note) AR EE (M) - 2,713 2,713

Note:

As at 1 April 2018, receipt in advance from customers of approximately
HK$2,713,000 in respect of considerations received from customers
previously included in trade and other payables were reclassified to
contract liabilities.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 15
(Continued)

The following table summarises the impacts of applying HKFRS
15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2019 and consolidated statement of cash flows

2.

ERHIIEBMEHEE

B (EEBMBEHEAER])

REEZITARm

EBMEREEREGRFAT
SRS lE)

B o JE 7 25 K BT K IR £ K B 1555 B

BN S ERE(E)

TR E S SR A E15

GUHAEER -FE—AF-F=—+—
BGARBRRERAEEEAR

for the current year for each of the line items affected. Line PRERASEITESTENZE -
items that were not affected by the changes have not been EEEITEHTENMEINIEER -
included:
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial position HEEHBERRERNEE
Amounts
without
application of
As reported Reclassification HKFRS 15
WEERAESB
B 7% 3 & 2 A
FEHkesE BENSE FISHENEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiBT FET
Current liabilities RBAEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K EAb R RIA 16,295 163 16,458
Contract liabilities AHEE 163 (163) -

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

HEEHTRERNTE

Amounts
without
application of
As reported Reclassification HKFRS 15
YEERE R
B 7 ¥R &5 2 A
FFE®RSHE BENoE EI5E 2 &R
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET
Decrease in trade and other B 5 & E i f& 1+
payables RIE R (743) (2,550) (3,293)
Decrease in contract aHaE
liabilities Vo%ea (2,550) 2,550 -

The directors of the Company considered the application of
HKFRS 15 has no material impact on the timing and amounts
of revenue recognised in the respective reporting periods.

ARFPEEZRRERBTENBRSEE
81 551557 ¥ 48 B8 ¥ & H3 8 P #E 2B O R
aREAMERLBERERTE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related
amendments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” and the related consequential amendments to
other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for (1)
the classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities, (2) expected credit losses (‘ECL”) for financial
assets and (3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. the Group has
applied the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under the ECL model) retrospectively to
instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1 April 2018
(date of initial application) but has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at
1 April 2018. The difference between the carrying amounts
as at 31 March 2018 and the carrying amounts as at 1 April
2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits and other

components of equity, without restating the comparative
information.
Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be

comparable as those comparative information were prepared
under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from the application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 3.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” and the related amendments
(Continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement
of financial assets subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS
39 at the date of initial application of HKFRS 9, 1 April 2018.

ERHIEEMBHREE
B((EEMBHRELEDD
REESTARE)
ESHERSERNERISRMT

E|RHBEAETARE)
B K BB T #R & E R B 9% T EE
EHFERE

TR MR R B8 B 75 s E R 057
REBGHEEFAHREEERE
HMEMEEREREREEVB®RE
ERFSR cBER(ZFT-NFMOA—
BB RGE -

Trade Retained
receivables profits
BEZERRE REER
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FHETT FAT
Opening balance at 31 March R Z-Z— \F=A
2018 - HKAS 39 =+t —HOBE
- B8 g £ FE395% 41,802 30,266
Effect arising from initial BRERBAVBMSE
application of HKFRS 9: LERIFRTELEFE
Impairment under ECL model EHEEREIE %‘Z’_—*.ETE’J
B (@) (1,722) (1,722)
Opening balance at 1 April 2018 R—Z— \FMNA—HH
H V)& 40,080 28,544

Note:

(a) Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure ECL
which uses a lifetime ECL for trade receivables.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost, including other receivables
and bank balances, are assessed on 12-month (“12 m”) ECL basis as
there had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 April 2018, additional credit loss allowance of approximately
HK$1,722,000 has been recognised against retained profits. The additional
credit loss allowance is charged against the respective assets.

() FHEEBEHATHHREE

AEEDEBEBYBREERFENRE
LA BB EEBR  £A2HE
HEEBRAE2EIEKFR -

HMmBEm Ay Rz emEE (BFE
KRR RITHES) NBEREEER
12 R (128 B ) FHAEE B R AR
i REKBVIGERREERRILER
=M

RZZ2-N\FWA—H ERERBENE
REIME B BB 491,722,000/ 7T < 3
IMEEBREBERIVEBEBEENR -

BREBMEZERERAT
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases'

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale of Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material®
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement!

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015-2017 Cycle!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new HKFRS mentioned below, the directors of
the Company anticipate that the application of all other new
and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSS”) (continuea)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 “Leases” and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification
of cash flows, operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flow. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing and operating cash flows respectively by the Group.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.

2.

ERAMIEBMERESE
BI(EABMEHREED])
REEITAR =)
EBMERE LR E6EAE]
BB B16% A% A LA
ARERBANRER SR e EED|
A— A B EBH KRS R
B B165 A K - E A B S e
A E175 [AE | RAEORIE.

&8 W15 S R E 1657 R & AT R

BEELRMEFPEV KRS HEERR
Bakewsh BEAMBREES

1R EERBARSREFTLENH
BEEANFISREREREHEEER
BRERHEARNREMETE - &
BUBREENFIRTEEEED
HEEEEHROBRE -

REBMEAEREEBEEEREN &
CHEMREHEENZEGREAS
STEERBR MNARAE AR A
JHERRERAREEEREERAGZ
R EAR »

CREEENFZRKAGE  BRIZ
B (HE & T BISNE SLBR 1) OB R 5T
ERREEEFE UTHHASEEED
EREHAEMELRAE -HEAE
TRMERIBGEE A XN BBREY
FHE-HiR HEABMHFTE
F)MBEREENFTARBEEITNF
LETAE -RBReRESEME
KERENRAUZT ALER SR
E-REAEBY B RS ERNE165%
1% - ﬁfﬁfﬂﬁﬁfiﬁ'ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ KR B
RASRMBED  HEG 2 AERE
E"]Eﬂﬁﬁk«xxfﬁi//wi"

BRETTEAREBEANERIN &
BUBREENFISHE AR LEAE
BEFEREITROEBEASFER
E ]Ifiz:z EERHBEABEHED RS
KEHEIRMERE -

BREBMEZERERAT
2018/19%F 3R

/7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN=NUE e Ead e

/8

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSS”) (continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of approximately HK$22,434,000 as
disclosed in note 25. The directors of the Company do not
expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with HKAS
17 would result in significant impact on the Group’s result but
expected that the above operating lease arrangements will meet
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
in respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value
or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16.

The application of new requirements may result changes in
measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of approximately HK$514,000 as rights under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may
be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits paid would be considered as additional lease
payments and included in the carrying amount of right-of-use
assets.

The Group elects the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(FRIC) — Int 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply this standard
to contracts that were not previously identified as containing
a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4. Therefore,
the Group does not reassess whether the contracts are, or
contain a lease which already existed prior to the date of
initial application. Furthermore, the Group elects the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as
lessee and recognises the cumulative effect of initial application
to opening retained profits without restating comparative
information.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, and in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 /Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of
HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct
goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application
of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed
for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast,
a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to
arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the other
party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified good or service by another
party. In this case, the Group does not control the specified
good or service provided by another party before that good or
service is transferred to the customer. When the Group acts
as an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for
arranging for the specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Principal versus agent (Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
below.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values, if any, over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

Deposits placed at an insurance company

Deposits placed at an insurance company is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost adjusted for
interest income and service charges, less impairment losses, if
any.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 April 2018. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
financial assets and are presented as other income.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with transitions in
note 2) (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling the financial asset; and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss, except that at the date of initial
application/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value
of an equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.

() Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. For financial
instruments other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired
(see below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables, other receivables and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

BEXEHE#

SWMIAE)

tHEE (&)

& B & E rR E (R I M 52269 380K &
X R B R B R e o 2 B B 955
AEBRBEE BV HREERFW

%EH@Z@@EE@%@%%W%
TR~ H A MR IR N SRTT A AR) TE R TR
EEEEW%E%%°E%EEE
Emiﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁ% A 2 Bk
BMNnRERREERROE -

PHEHEEBBESEBIAENE
HERPRNMENENENSEHES
ZHEEEEB - B 12 A EH
EEFEEBEENRE B %128 A
NATREB A MEN S HBEH Z 2878
HEEBEBSD - FEIRELAELEE
mfigéﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁm%%
BAREHNREE  —REERKAUAR
¥ 3RE B HE ATARR B9 FF 15 DA R B R
BRI Y FEORI 1 F o

AEELEERE S RUFIAEREH
BEHEEER ZFEEMNBEHEER
EREBMG -

AMBEEMTAMS  AEBEFEN
BEBREBESN2EAEREEEE
BRIEBE M RIREERRREIZ
M ZINEE TR %%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%°

ARER:BEBEEEENFTG
EﬁFQW%ﬁEMI%EL%ZT
BE I Bk /R B ) R E R 00 -

() FERBREZEM
RIFEENHBERRESERRZ
DREREMNE  AEESRRE
FemTAREZENORRE
VR TARLEZE
KRR AEITEL B - FEETTRRAT A
B AEEEEERE AN
MEEMELER BREELE
BLREFNEIOENKARS
AMAEZ A E LR R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

BB HRR M T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A debt instrument is determined to have low credit risk if
(i) it has a low risk of default, (i) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term and (iii) adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a debt instrument to have low credit risk when it has an
internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as
per globally understood definitions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with

transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

(ii) Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals

held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more

lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that

financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9 with
transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset including trade
receivable, when there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a lease
receivable, the cash flows used for determining the ECL
is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with HKAS 17 “Leases”.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables,
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

The Group’s financial assets include loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade receivables, other receivables and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment (see accounting
policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be
impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or
° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

BEAXEFHE =
SRMITA®
PHEE(E)
SRMEEY PEREESE (R
— PR — B R B S R
81l 0% A1)
AEENSREEREERREKR
Eo“@ﬂﬁﬁi@§FZEE&%
B URPBEREEE - FERE
RERZSREED IR %E%&%
DRI R RE NS RIS RA
PR 15 15 A1 18 )28 22 OB R 9 22
NESREE -

B3 e R

Hm&ﬁw Eﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ%
Mk & B E KA EE N R ENT AR
BB E - TR ERR  BRKEKK
H(BRE S ERFIA - HAib & WA
AR RITRBEIRE) RABERM KX
BEERAREFIRESE (2HTX
TREERESERR) -

MEWATI ERBERF KR - KK

FE SR B30 AN B K B K2 H e W SRR B
BR S o

TREEREMN-_T—-N\FMOA—H
FER BB |E ERFE5RA)
REBBEZRATFEARZEREE

S EREEDRSHREHRIBE
ERETUFG - HERERERERE
REHERETREERBLEN AR
NEEHMEESBEENETRE
Reng AeREEWRRAME-

IBHEMERMEEMS  BENE

BREreEeE:

o BIOAXIRZYUTHLEBBAYRE
R 3k

o ERAK  PIIEHSIHERFE
EREHOZAN L

e MBEARABERESE
W -

THHE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

BB HRR M T

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS 9
on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’'s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When trade receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses were recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and bank
and other borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised
costs, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs, other than those directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless another
HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the
cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HKS) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expenses that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Government subsidies

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and the future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within
the next financial year.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Estimated write down of inventories

Management of the Group assesses whether the carrying
amounts of the inventories are recoverable and estimates the
allowance for inventories based on their industry knowledge
and experience at the end of the reporting period. Management
estimates the amount of allowance for inventories based on
the lower of cost and their estimated net realisable value. In
determining the net realisable values of the Group’s inventories,
the management considers the current market conditions,
material price fluctuation and subsequent usage or sales. When
the actual net realisable values are lower than expectation,
such difference will impact the carrying amounts of inventories.
As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amounts of inventories
are approximately HK$54,990,000 (2018: HK$39,483,000). No
allowance for inventories is recognised for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 2018.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4. {45 FHHBEZMNEER
(Continued) R &)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued) HEFTHBEZENETERIRE)
Impairment assessment of trade receivables B SN B HE LA
Upon application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the Group RZZE-—N\FHNA—BERBANE
calculates ECL for the trade receivables individually after WEERFENRRE  AEELEEES
considering internal credit ratings of trade debtors, ageing, BEHBAHNATEETR B EX
repayment history and/or past due status of respective trade e KBS E S eI B E R
receivables. Estimated loss rates are based on historical g BEBHEE S EKRFIARNTERD
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and FEFEE -HiBEERDEREBEBA
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is reasonable RTE R AR A ﬂﬁt&ﬁﬂ FriSmE 4 &
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At fHEt W BALEE TV ERALE
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are HENAIESH AN ERIEEERE
reassessed and changes in the forward-looking information are PHEE REREOHEEFIHE
considered. FTEBEMENEZRERERIEEER
The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The EHEEBE BRBHGEAEHLA
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables B - EEBEHREERBERAEEN
are disclosed in notes 28 and 17 respectively. B RWFENERD IR 28K
173 58 o
As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of trade receivables RZE-—NAF=A=+—H8 25
are approximately HK$64,424,000, net of impairment loss of i 145( IE ) BR TH B 49 /564,424,0007%8
HK$2,603,000. JC + B IR R (B &5 182,603,000 JT ©
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5, WWEZRIHMER
The Group is principally engaged in () manufacturing and AEBXZRB(IRNEREBTELR
trading of DTH rockdrilling tools, (i) trading of piling and driling ELE(NEETIEHK B i)
machineries; and (iii) trading of rockdrilling equipment. EEREREEL-
Disaggregation of revenue ik 25 B 4
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE_F-NFZA=1T—HILFE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: AEBEWRBAIMAOT
2019
—2-NF
HK$’000
TER
Recognised at a point in time: RNE—FREBHER:
Manufacturing and trading of DTH rockdrilling BENEEEARETA
tools 108,273
Trading of piling and drilling machineries EEITIER B 38,700
Trading of rockdrilling equipment BEEEREXRE 16,468
163,441
BREBMEZERERAT
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

All of the Group’s revenue is recognised when the control of
goods is transferred, being when the goods are delivered to
the customer’s specific location. A receivable is recognised
by the Group when the goods are delivered to the customer’s
premises as this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage
of time is required before payment is due. The customers have
neither rights of return nor rights to defer or avoid payment
for the goods once they are accepted by the customers upon
receipt of goods. The contracts signed with the customers are
short-term and fixed price contracts.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contract with customers

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March
2019 and the expected timing of recognising revenue are as
follows:

hERDEBEF =)
RESEHMAANBAEE
A EEFT RN E SRR
WY (LRGN EEF IS )
B HERR o & S N B S R BT R
AR IE B E R AR R
B 7 HEF B 4 15 16 1 1 — (B B 25 -
RARBIHAREFERBE B
B S| E @ %ﬁlﬂ%ﬂ
REE S REER RS ER -
HEFEENANAEHRETER
&

TRERAEFZHASHRTE

NEEzZXSE
RZZE-hF=A=+—-BoEEH
TEAOBECREREE D RERK) 2

RHELRERRROEHERET

HK$’000
FH

—FR

Within one year

23,466

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on the types of products sold. The
Group’s operating segments are classified as (i) manufacturing
and trading of DTH rockdrilling tools; (i) trading of piling and
drilling machineries; and (iii) trading of rockdrilling equipment.

The details of the Group’s reportable segments are as follows:

(i) Manufacturing and trading of DTH rockdriling tools
which include design, manufacturing and trading of DTH
rockdrilling tools

(i) Trading of piling and drilling machineries

(i)  Trading of rockdrilling equipment

These operating segments also represent the Group’s

reportable segments. No operating segments identified by

the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION contives) 5. W 2SR D EBEH )
Segment revenue and results SEHKRERES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results IATEFARE BRI & KA 2 W5 &b
by operating and reportable segments: oM E REEDN
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-ZE—NF=A=+—-HLEFE
Manufacturing
and trading Trading of
of DTH piling and Trading of
rockdrilling drilling rockdrilling
tools machineries equipment Total
HEREE EETBHR EEE:
ELBRETH REH %1 @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THEL T ThRR THAT
Segment and external sales NERINREE 108,273 38,700 16,468 163,441
RESULTS 4
Segment result NHEE 54,533 7,380 4,444 66,357
Unallocated expenses FAEHEX (40,078)
Other income and expenses Htt AR 2,108
Impairment losses, net of reversal MEBEMBRER) (2,952)
Other gains and losses ElaREE 1,404
Finance costs BEKAE (1,041)
Profit before tax % Bt At A 25,798
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION contives) 5. W 2SR D EBEH )
Segment revenue and results (Continued) SEHMERESEE)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-_Z-N\F=A=+—HILFE
Manufacturing
and trading Trading of
of DTH piling and Trading of
rockdrilling drilling rockdrilling
tools machineries equipment Total
NEREE BEEITER BEE
BIBETA RE#K BeRE Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THEL AT TAET
Segment and external sales AERINFEE 62,609 27,489 9,605 99,703
RESULTS *8&
Segment result NEELE 31,962 3,438 2,069 37,469
Unallocated expenses AABHE (32,225)
Other income and expenses Hep WA RAE 202
Impairment losses, net of reversal A (F1KEE) (1,179)
Other gains and losses HttlmkBE (872)
Finance costs BEKAR (478)
Profit before tax I 0 BT g A 2,922

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment result represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of unallocated expenses (mainly including
general office expenses, selling and distribution expenses
and unallocated depreciation), other income and expenses,
impairment losses, net of reversal, other gains and losses and
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM of the
Group for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities
No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is presented
as they are not regularly provided to the CODM of the Group.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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Other information
For the year ended 31 March 2019

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Manufacturing

5. WERDTEER 2

HiEH
BE-—Z—-hE=ZA=Z+—HLEE

and trading Trading of
of DTH piling and Trading of
rockdrilling drilling rockdrilling
tools machineries equipment Total
HEREE BEBR BEE
EABETIR RER BERAE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
TER TER THERT TERT
Amounts regularly provided to  EHIR T EE & RFE
the CODM but not included in ?E (RN quz
the measurement of segment D EEMNRK
result:
Depreciation nE 1,827 132 14 1,973
Loss on disposal of property,  HEWE  BER&E
plant and equipment BB - 406 - 406
For the year ended 31 March 2018 BHE-_T—-)\F=A=+—HILFE
Manufacturing
and trading Trading of
of DTH piling and Trading of
rockdrilling drilling rockdrilling
tools machineries equipment Total
HEREE BEETHER BEE
EHEBEIA R BERE st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
THET TERT TET FEL
Amounts regularly provided to  EHMEBLERRH
the CODM but not included in ~ RHETF ARG &
the measurement of segment 7 2B ¥ A& K FUA -
result:
Depreciation ne 994 224 43 1,261
BHREBEZERBRAR
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION continves) 5. WX R EE R =)

Geographical information MWEZR
The following table sets out information about (i) the Group’s TREFNNVAEEBIZE P A E S
revenue from external customers by the location of customers MRBEBINABZFRER(INAEEIZE
and (i) the Group’s property, plant and equipment by location EMEMWEISOYE - BEREEN
of assets. BEH o
Revenue from external Property, plant and
customers equipment
REIAREFWEH ME- - BERRHE
For the year ended 31 March As at 31 March
BE=ZB=+—HLFE W=A=+-—H
2019 2018 2019 2018
—F-0EFE —T-N\F  ZB-AEFE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T & FAET FE T FAT
Hong Kong &5 129,974 88,520 3,592 941
Macau R P 22,434 6,046 - -
Peru MR 5,655 - — -
Japan H A 3,948 348 - -
Scandinavia Hy 5 A9 4 4 0 1,241 2,839 - -
The PRC aa = - 7,636 9,964
Others H 189 1,950 - -
163,441 99,7083 11,228 10,905
Information about major customers FEEFEHR
Revenue from major customers which accounted for 10% or MNEEE R B HANEBRWKZE10%3K LA
more of the Group’s revenue for each of the years are set out FrzFrEpmkzEEHymT
below:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE T FAT
Customer A from trading of piling and E ST E# LEBEHRNEFPA N/A T3 A 12,257
drilling machineries
Customer B from all segments REFBNEHNEFB N/A T iE A 10,545
Customer C from all segments REFMBDSBHEFC 20,668 N/A 73 B
Customer D from manufacturing and SiEREFE L BET A RERE 19,089 N/A 73
trading of DTH rockdrilling tools and ~ R#&EREFD
trading of rockdrilling equipment
! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total 1 AW R (EAEF 2 WZEH10% °

revenue of the Group.
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OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES 6. HitWt ARKFX
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FAT

Rental income of piling and drilling THEMREREZERSKA

machineries and equipment 1,264 513
Repair fee income 1B &R A 313 -
Scrap sales BERLH & 295 102
Bank interest income H|ITHE WA 30 20
Interest income on insurance scheme & & 5+ 21 7 8 Uk A 88 86
Sundry income HIEUA 118 27
Government grant (note (1)) BXRS 78 B) (M 5 (1)) = 2,877
Legal and professional fees (note (2) AR EFEEEMR (H:E©) - (3,423)
2,108 202

Notes:

1) Government subsidies of approximately HK$2,877,000 had been received
in the prior year to award the listing of the Company. The PRC subsidiary
had complied with the conditions attached to the grants and, therefore,
the Group recognised the grants in profit or loss upon receipt.

2) Legal and professional fee of approximately HK$3,423,000 in relation to
change in shareholders in February 2018 was charged to profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES, NET OF REVERSAL/OTHER 7.
GAINS AND LOSSES

1) R EFE B % BT 8L £92,877,000%8
T UEMARR LT - FEWBARD
HEBBWMMAMM S Z &S Bt - A&
ErEREENBSER BB -

) BT -NF_ARFEEABANEER
FE B H 43,423,000/ LE R BB ©

MERBERER) H
it U =5 %2 85 4R

2019 2018
—E-AF —N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTET FAET
Impairment losses on trade receivables, & 5 & U& 7k 18 & (& &5 18
net of reversal (0B #E @) (2,952) (1,179)
Details of impairment assessment for #HZE_-_Z—h&E=ZA=+—HK
the year ended 31 March 2019 are WEFEHEOFBERR
set out in note 28. I 5E28 ©
Other gains and losses include the Hih = REEBREATEE
followings:
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) HMNE 5 (B 48) 358 1,810 (872)
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE - BE X
and equipment RiEEE (406) -
1,404 (872)
EREEERERAT
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FINANCE COSTS 8. HMERZAE
2019 2018
—E-hF — N\
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Interest on bank and other borrowings #8717 & £ b {& & F| & 1,041 473
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. FR#iATEF
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging: BR B ATE A 2 HBR A NIAR -
2019 2018
—E-hF — N\
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Directors’ remuneration (Note 11) FEMe (HFFE11) 1,058 5,424
Other staff costs Hfh 8 TR 16,114 11,462
Contributions to retirement benefit RKEBHFEHR(ZEE 2
schemes, other than those SRR HN)
of directors 1,358 1,271
Total staff costs BIRAEEE 18,530 18,157
Capitalised in cost of inventories BEERAEETFERAN
manufactured (5,982) (4,936)
12,548 13,221
Depreciation of property, plant and mE WMEREBBITE
equipment 3,883 3,137
Capitalised in cost of inventories EERNERREFEXR
manufactured (1,910) (1,876)
1,973 1,261
Auditor’s remuneration 2 8RN Bl & 2,450 2,428
Cost of inventories recognised as WRAEMZ 2 FERAE
expense 97,084 62,234
Operating lease rental in respect of LTHEEMNKEHEERS
minimum lease payments HEMENKEREESMER
of rented premises 3,925 3,632

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. R8BI X

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Current tax: BN HARR 18 -

Hong Kong 55 4,896 1,596
PRC Enterprise Income Tax FEICEEH 1,925 683
6,821 2,279

Underprovision in prior years BAFERETR
Hong Kong B - 47
Deferred tax (credit) charge (Note 22) EIEF{E (%) = 1 (Ft7522) (788) 105
6,033 2,431

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on
the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed
at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount involved
upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% (2018: 25%) of the
assessable profits for the subsidiary established in the PRC.

RZE—NF=A=Z+—H BB
=g @ BC017TE B (1B 5] (FB79R)
BHIERNERBIER]) 5| AFIE/
MBS - ZENERR_E—NF=
B+ N\BEEXEELEE LR IKAE
HE-REMNGSHMAS  GERE
EEEE2H 8B HEF 5 1%8.25%H
PERBF > MiBiB2AE B TR
Z16.5%M B REH - THEERHEA
IS AR B = B E 88 A0 % FI A5 4
BIRE — B ER16.5% W

RRBEERR  BHENGEH MR
FrrH B RAMBRERME ML
RE - MEFEANTENGRZMG
At RERR B4 M #916.5% =t & ©

BIEPECEMSHE(RERER
EDREEMRESBRAERGD - R F
B0 AR 2 ) BT B8 2 B B4R B AR B ik ) Y
2% (= F— \F:26%) st EHEE
ES IR
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq)

The income tax expense for the year ended 31 March 2019
can be reconciled to the profit before tax as follows:

10. FR8
Hz—_ZE—hNWF=Z=A=+—BILLFE
Frisfif T EERRATEFEROT -

A e )

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Profit before tax B #5 AT 4 K 25,798 2,922
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of R TS R16.5% & 2 FiIA
16.5% 4,257 482
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A] F0F: 57 Sz 2 7 1% 52 &
for tax purposes 1,413 1,658
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax 7B R i W A 2 T 16 52 &
purposes (6) (4)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERHBEE 2 HET L = 59
Utilisation of tax losses previously not B F3 LA 7E K #E 3R HY
recognised T I8 &5 18 (59) -
Underprovision in prior years BAFERETIR = 47
Tax effect of different tax rate of REMREEREE 2K B A A
subsidiary operating in other HKRATRABRENB G E
jurisdiction 654 232
Tax concession (note) TR & (B %) (60) (90)
Tax effect of two-tiered profit tax rates FARF| B RFIEN R BT E
regime (165) -
Others HAb (1) a7
Income tax expense Fris®iA > 6,033 2,431

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2019, each subsidiary incorporated in

Hong Kong entitled tax concession of HK$20,000 (2018: HK$30,000).

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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11. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF "N E5 - THEBRESM
EXECUTIVE AND EMPLOYEES £
Directors and Chief Executive EERTHAR
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the vyear, AFEESERTHAEME  BEE
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong BETMRAEEBEAGHEFIHELT

Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-ZE—-NFE=A=+—-HLEE
Performance
related Contributions
Salaries incentive  to retirement
and other payments benefit
Fee benefits (note) schemes Total
ek EuRE RIKEF
e Hth3E A k) T @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TAT TET THET TET TET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. He Xiaoming (note 3) Z LA (F5E3) = = - - -
Mr. Wong Ka Shing (note 5) BERALE (HH5) = = - - -
Mr. Chan Leung Choi (note 1) B A () - 42 - 1 43
Mr. Chan Kin Choi (note 1) B fe % & (Bt 1) - 4 - 1 42
Mr. Chan Tat Ghoi (note 4) WM % & (i) = 581 = 11 592
Ms. Liang Ning (note 1) RELT (M) = 20 - 1 21
= 684 = 14 698

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors

Ms. Lam Hoi Yu Nicki (note 3) ML+ (I 5E3) 114 - - - 114
Mr. Lau Leong Yuen (note 3) 2180k % & (F13k3) 114 - - - 114
Mr. Liu Tin Lap (note 3) BRIEAE (H53) 114 - - - 114
Mr. Lewis Chan (note 2) WL (2) 6 - - - 6
Mr. Lam Chun Fung (note 2) Bk () 6 - - - 6
Mr. Sung Lok Man Richard (note 2) 7 443028 A (Fff £2) 6 - - - 6

360 = = = 360

360 684 = 14 1,058
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11. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF "N EF -THEABRESM
EXECUTIVE AND EMPLOYEES (continuea) €
Directors and Chief Executive (Continued) BEERITHAH &)
For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE-_ZT-\F=ZA=+—HLFE
Performance
related  Contributions
Salaries incentive  to retirement
and other payments benefit
Fee benefits (note) schemes Total
Hek EmEse RIREF
e EiEH (K3E) BT @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL TEL THL THEL
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Chan Leung Chol (note 1) BRER#T 2 4 (FiH3E1) - 1,312 410 18 1,740
Mr. Chan Kin Choi (note 1) B o (Bt et1) - 1,270 314 33 1,617
Mr. Chan Tat Choi (note 4) B LA (T 5E4) - 882 244 18 1,144
Ms. Liang Ning (note 1) 2B T (fi31) - 547 32 44 623
- 4,011 1,000 113 5,124

Independent non-executive BIUFHTEES

directors
Mr. Lewis Chan (note 2) B2 4o A (5E2) 100 - - - 100
Mr. Lam Chun Fung (note 2)  EEf& 1§ 5L 4 (Fit552) 100 - - - 100
Mr. Sung Lok Man Richard RE K ()
(note 2) 100 - - - 100
300 - - - 300
300 4,011 1,000 113 5,424
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for EXHTRATEENNE DEEESE
their services in connection with the management of the affairs BARNG RASESZBHMEEN RS
of the Company and the Group. The independent non-executive B EXAITIERTESHHE R
directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services as HERETARRESHE -

Directors of the Company.

/I /I O Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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11. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF

1. 5.

THRIAKRESH

EXECUTIVE AND EMPLOYEES (continued) - AC )

Directors and Chief Executive (Continued) BEERITHAH &)

Note 1:  Mr. Chan Leung Choi, Mr. Chan Kin Choi and Ms. Liang Ning had a1 R=ZFE—-N\FHEA+=H BRBEML
resigned as executive directors and Mr. Chan Leung Choi has also £ oBREMEERRELTHIRTE
resigned his position as the chairman and the chief executive officer £ BRBM S EIRBHEARR A EFERAT
of the Company on 13 April 2018. AR H -

Note 2:  Mr. Lewis Chan, Mr. Lam Chun Fung and Mr. Sung Lok Man Richard MaEFe: RZFT—NFOA=-+HB RSk
had resigned as independent non-executive directors on 20 April 2018. o ERERAERREEEBETEL

FEHITES -

Note 3: Mr. He Xiaoming had been appointed as an executive director, chief a3 : R=ZZT—\FMA+=H AXBEE
executive officer and chairman of the board of directors, on 13 April BZAEARNTES THREAHEKESE
2018. Mr. Liu Tin Lap, Mr. Lau Leong Yuen and Ms. Lam Hoi Yu Nicki FE-RZE-NFNA=+H BX
were appointed as independent non-executive directors on 20 April SEEBIEREERMNI M Z T RS
2018. ERBIUFAITES -

Note 4:  Mr. Chan Tat Choi had resigned as an executive director on s R=T—N\FE+—ABN\H BREMILE
8 November 2018. BERNTES -

Note 5: Mr. Wong Ka Shing had been appointed as an executive director on B 5E5 - —NF—AhB EERALE
9 January 2019. ZERWITES -

Employees E&

The five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 March
2019 include nil director of the Company, and that for the
year ended 31 March 2018 included three directors of the
Company, details of whose remunerations are set out above.
Details of the remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2019
of the remaining five (2018: two) highest paid employees who

BE_ZE-NWF=A=+—BHL#F

g R

EREFHALBRBEALDF

TEREF MAE-F-\FA

=+ —

BREARF=ZRESE"
BEREX - BE-FT—

BLEFE AE&aFHFMAL
1 5 B ¥ B &
NF= ﬂ

are neither director nor chief executive of the Company are as =+—BULtEFE #BTHA (_?
follows: F-MEB)BRSHFWEEWIEAR
ERITHAH ?&%E’\J%ﬁ@ﬂﬁ’%ﬂﬂ—lt :
2019 2018
—E-NEF —T— )N\
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T TFET
Salaries and allowances e KoERL 5,365 1,471
Performance related incentive EEE (M)
payments (note) 2,518 588
Contributions to retirement benefit R OKTE B 5T 2 3
schemes 132 36
8,015 2,095
Note: The performance related incentive payments are determined on the e : BREERIAFENEAARREEER

performance of the individuals and the profitability of the group entities EREMNERATE -

during the year.
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BB HRR M T

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE AND EMPLOYEES (continuec)

Employees (Continueq)
The number of these highest paid employees, whose
emolument fell within the following bands is as follows:

"N B THARRESH

€

EE (&)
ETHME AR NZE RS T EE
A BN :

0

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000/% 7T 1

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017% 7t £1,500,0007% 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/% 7t £2,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7t £3,500,0007% 7T 1 -
5 2

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the BHE_Z-—NLFEZZ—-—NF=A

Company or the five highest paid individuals (including directors
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office for the years ended
31 March 2019 and 2018. None of the directors waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments for the years ended 31 March
2019 and 2018.

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company does not recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: nil).

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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13. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 13. BREF (F18)
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Profit (loss): A ()
Profit (loss) for the purpose of BUGESRELRRF (EE)
calculating basic earnings (loss) B35 ) (E518) -
per share:
Profit (loss) for the year attributable A RIHEB AN AL F AR H
to the owners of the Company (E518) 13,859 (2,324)
’000 ‘000
T T &
Number of shares: fRHEE -
Number of ordinary shares for the AU ESRERZF
purpose of calculating basic (BE)NTEREE
earnings (loss) per share 380,000 380,000
No diluted earnings (loss) per share for the years ended HREBEZE-_ZT—NEERZZE-—N\F=

31 March 2019 and 2018 was presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue during the years ended
31 March 2019 and 2018.

ATt BLEEERSEOEEE
B HEEEIRE-T-AFR
—E— \F=A=t—ALFENS
B % AR (B518) -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. ¥ -BERKR

Furniture,
fixtures and
office Motor Plant and Leasehold
equipment vehicles  machineries improvements Total
B
EEHER i)
WOARE RE BERME MELE @
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL THEL THEL FEL
COST BA
At 1 April 2017 i —tEmMA—H 3,746 2,309 17,759 2,996 26,810
Currency realignment B HE 378 9% 1,696 316 2,484
Additions NE 175 - 400 1,181 1,756
Disposal & 6) - - - 6)
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=ZRA=1+—H 4,293 2,403 19,855 4,493 31,044
Currency realignment B 5 Eﬂ & (242) (65) (1,135) (223) (1,665)
Additions NE 283 3,733 1,253 - 5,269
Disposal/written off & /3 (486) (88) (89) (620) (1,283)
At 31 March 2019 -NE=ZR=+-H 3,848 5,983 19,884 3,650 33,365
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+ENA—H 1,904 1,866 10,185 1,567 15,522
Currency realignment ERRAE 215 76 999 196 1,486
Provided for the year ENEE 375 260 1,516 986 3,187
Elimination on disposals £ & F i # ) - - - ®)
At 31 March 2018 WZE-\F=A=+—H 2,488 2,202 12,700 2,749 20,139
Currency realignment ERAE (165) (55) (720) (148) (1,088)
Provided for the year FREE 393 696 2,262 532 3,883
Elimination on disposals/ €& /4 i & 1 8
written off (424) (79) (80) (214) (797)
At 31 March 2019 —-NWE=ZRA=1+—8H 2,292 2,764 14,162 2,919 22,137
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NE=Zf=+—H 1,556 3,219 5,722 731 11,228
At 31 March 2018 —NEZA=t-H 1,805 201 7,155 1,744 10,905
During the year ended 31 March 2018, additions of plant and HEe—_Z2—-N\F=ZA=+—HIt#F
machineries of HK$400,000 was transferred from inventories. E ANBERE X #23400,000%8 T )0 B
Rental income of approximately HK$93,000 was recognised as FEE R - WA £93,0000 T E

BARBREE MR MU A
Wt ATEMBA KRR -

an other income in respect of the plant and machineries and
is included "other income and expenses".

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continveq) ~ 14. Y% - BE R R & @)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are Lz BEREBEBIZTIE
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per LEELBEREREFE
annum:
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% R BERERFARE 20%
Motor vehicles 25%-30% _E 25%-30%
Plant and machineries 10%—25% T 5 T # 28 10%-25%
Leasehold improvements 20%-33% HEMHEEE 20%-33%
DEPOSITS PLACED AT AN INSURANCE COMPANY 15. ER R AT ZFER
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Deposits placed at an insurance ERRB ARG ZFR
company 4,514 4,426
During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group entered HE-_ZT—+tF=HA=1+—HLIHF
into several life insurance contracts (the “Policies”) with an Er-AEBRHE-KREREBARITZLEZ D
insurance company to insure all the former executive directors ASREREHTRE]D 7%$ Az

of the Company (who remain as key management of the
Group in current year). Under the Policies, the beneficiary and
policy holder are Top Mark, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and the total insured sum is United States dollars
(“US$")1,800,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$14,040,000).
The Group needs to pay a premium charge at inception
amounting to US$548,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$4,256,000). The insurance company will pay the Group
a guaranteed interest rate of 3.9% per annum for the first to
five years and a variable return per annum afterwards (with
guaranteed minimum interest rate of 2.25% per annum) during
the effective period of the Policies on the outstanding cash value
of the Policies (which is determined by the premium charge
plus accumulated interest earned and minus notional amount
charge, cost of insurance charge and premium loan (if any)).

The Group is allowed to terminate the Policies at any time and
receive value in cash based on the value of the Policies at the
date of withdrawal, which is determined by the upfront payment
of US$548,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,274,000)
plus accumulated interest earned and minus premium charge,
notional amount charge, cost of insurance charge and premium
loan (if any). A specified amount of surrender charge will apply
if withdrawal of the Policies is made between the 1st to 14th
policy year.

EHAMITESE (RAFEDAEAEER
FEEBEE)ERR -REZRE AR
RIZ2ENBARIEREEWASEA
MR A © #81% {R B8 /1,800,000 7T
(& 7t])(F8E MK 414,040,000/ 7T) °
N2 B B P A A H HA S 1R 548,000
%7‘5 08 R #14,256,0007 JT 1R &
NABRAASBE TN EFREFENE
3.9% WREBRBLEMIBAGRE
ZABRSEBEGZENREEEN
R EBRAETHNKREESEER
REEBEAMREER(WWE)MET)
FIXNAULEHK(EEREFFNER
2.25%) °

NEBAFERAIERE  WEFHHEA
BHrREEAWKRBRESEE AEM
X 18548,0003% 7T (18 & 7 494,274,000
BIT)MBFEHFNERRE  BE2
HER REREAKMREER(WA)
FTETE - IR F1Z2F14EAREFEH
FEERE  BWERETSEIRR
BH -
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15. DEPOSITS PLACED AT AN INSURANCE COMPANY 15. ZFRRE AT Z2ER @)
(Continued)
The directors of the Company considered the Group will not KRB EFERE ASERHERLE
terminate the Policies within twelve months from the end of FEFTZFEARTERIERETED
the reporting period and classified as non-current assets. As at BRIERDEE -R_TE—NLF=A
31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018, the expected life of the = —1— —BEZE-—NF=F=+—
Policies was remained unchanged from the initial recognition IRETE qu?‘yJ% Hi B W) MR R
and the directors of the Company considered the chance of ?iT\“ MARRIEERRITHEEE
exercising the option to surrender the Policies is remote. The BHEREZHEEEM - ERRIER
financial impact of the option to terminate the Policies was BN RZUBEELTERKX -
insignificant.
16. INVENTORIES 16. #8
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Raw materials and consumables R ¥ E FE G 17,145 13,755
Work in progress T8 m 4,423 3,439
Finished goods SR 33,422 22,289
54,990 39,483
17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. ESZ R HEMEWRRIE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FAET
Trade receivables, net 2 5 MWK IE == 64,424 41,802
Other receivables H b JE W5k
- Value-added tax recoverable - [l g e i TE?F)EE 2,149 935
- Prepayments - FE{IRIE 4,223 1,052
— Deposits - &% 2,224 5,698
— Other receivables — Hfth pE Uk SR IE 824 205
Total trade and other receivables B REMERKRIBLE 73,844 49,592

/I /I 6 Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2018, trade receivables from
contracts with customers amounted to HK$64,424,000 and
HK$41,802,000 respectively.

The Group grants a credit period ranged from 30 days to 90
days upon delivery of goods to its customers. The following is
an aged analysis of trade receivables based on delivery dates,
net of impairment losses at the end of the reporting period:

H {th FE W TR I8 ()
E’\‘_T nﬁfﬂf+ Ak=-F
—NFHWA—B RXERFAEHE
2 FE W FRIE 5 7l #64,424,0007% 7T &
41,802,000/ 7T °

AEBGETEFHNEESNTITRGE
YI1430290H - L T AR EBHRE
REZAHENE S REKKIE (BB
EEE) Rk DT :

2019 2018
—ZE-hHF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
0 to 30 days 0£30H 14,816 14,545
31 to 60 days 31260H 7,092 5,450
61 to 90 days 61290H 12,112 4,916
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 12,006 8,748
181 days to 1 year 181H £14 12,214 6,010
Over 1 year 19F A £ 6,184 2,133
64,424 41,802
Before accepting any new customers, the Group assesses BEWMEMFERPA - NEEgHEE
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits EREPZEEE= UWEEREFPZE

by customer. Credit limits granted to customers are reviewed
periodically.

Before the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018,
in determining the allowance for trade receivables, the
management considered the credit history including default or
delay in payments, settlement records, subsequent settlements
and aging analysis of the trade receivables.

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 March
2019 are set out in note 28.

Before the application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, included
in the Group’s trade receivables balance were debtors with
aggregate carrying amounts of approximately HK$24,391,000
which were past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group had not recognised an allowance for trade
receivables because there had not been a significant change
in credit history and the amounts were still considered
recoverable. Trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
were subsequent settlements or no history of default. The Group
did not hold any collateral over these balances.

ERE-HMEE
EERE -

HiRaRTEPZ

R-ZE-NFMA—-BEBEENE
HEEANFHR  EEBEHEETES
EYRRIBRER  ZERERETE &
ERRLTEBMNK BELHR RE
BELEBZRWFIBRKR DT -

HE_ZTZ-NF=A=+—HILFE
B R B AT 1 5 175 o0 0 BfY A28

R-ZEZE— ) \FWNA—BEAEFTEH
HHmEERFRA AEENE
SERFBERPEEREENA
24,391,000/ T 89 FE WL BR 3% - M AR &
EHABRE ZHREKFIERBEORSE
HREIH REARERLHLE %
Eiﬁ@m*$$WWEﬁﬂW@o
BEABEBIARRENE S EIWKT
ﬁ&&%%:&ﬂLmﬁﬁmgz%
F-AEBYARZELEHRIFTHEN
R o
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 17. ESRHEMEWRFRE @)
At 31 March 2019, included in the Group’s trade receivables RZE—hLhF=ZA=Z+—H &%
balance are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of ME SRR EBELEHRBIELEREERE
HK$47,511,000 which are past due and which impairment loss /47,511,000 7T B 2 2 Hi &9 & W BR
had not been provided for since they are of good credit quality o BEEHREEEZRFEBEHITK
and expected to be recoverable. The Group does not hold any B WA ARPFARBREEE K&
collateral over these balances. Include in the past due balance BT ARZEERTEEMERR -
of HK$23,282,000 are debtors which are past due 90 days i 8 45 $223,282,000/% 7T B #E 38 Hi90
or more and are not considered as in default based on good RFEAEMEKER  BEZSFEK
repayment records for those debtors and continuous business EFNRERCEREREENF
with the Group. BEBMTHERABEL -

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not CAPESERENE S EWRE
impaired R e
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FAET
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 8,415
31 to 60 days 31Z60H 4,084
61 to 90 days 61290H 1,874
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 5,949
181 days to 1 year 181 — 4 2,630
Over 1 year —F P E 1,439
24,391
An allowance was provided on trade receivables and the ERESEWRFIAIREH  BHEE
movement is as follows: ER NN
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTET FAET
Balance at the beginning of the year — F # & & = -
Adjustment (note 2) T (K FE2) 1,722 -
Balance at the beginning of the year 4 #4588 (&K &E751))

(restated) 1,722 -
Impairment losses recognised EHRRREGE 2,952 1,179
Amounts written off as uncollectible  #ft 5 & 7~ 7] U [2] #) 3 1B (2,071) (1,179)
Closing at the end of the year FIRAEER 2,603 -
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18. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 18. SRITHEMBRRAS
The Group’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in REEAIERE & B E I E & A
currency other than the functional currencies of the relevant MEBEZRITEGKRE S
group entities are set out below: wm
2019 2018
—ZE-AHF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Denominated in US$ LAETTEHE 2,346 875
Bank balances carry interests at prevailing market rates ranging IRITHERIEN T0%E0.33% (ZF—N
from 0% to 0.33% (2018: 0% to 0.33%) per annum. F 1 0%Z=0.33% ) ) & Bl ™ 15 F F| X
§+ /%\ ©
Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31 March HE_ZT-NF=-A=T—HLFE
2019 are set out in note 28. B R (B 5T 1 5 15 B B 5528 o
19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. ESRHMEMNKE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Trade payables g 5 EM A 9,877 8,092
Accrued expenses T X 3,961 7,451
Accrued housing provident fund EErERLAES 1,054 1,127
Receipt in advance T8 U 3k 1B = 2,713
Other payables H b 3k18 1,403 128
Total trade and other payables B NHMENKIEERE 16,295 19,511
As at and commencing from 1 April 2018, receipt in advance RZE-N\FOA—BAKBZBE-
from customers of approximately HK$2,713,000 in respect of BHERFAESLNHEHMENKIEBEZ
considerations received from customers previously included in ERNEFPREMNBUREPRELY
trade and other payables were reclassified to contract liabilities 2,713,000/% 7t [ JE A & 5 B 7% o 5 %
resulting from the application of HKFRS 15. HIE1SEMEN D ERENEE-
The credit period of trade payables granted by suppliers is from HEFARTHEZENRENEES
30 to 60 days upon the issue of invoices. N FFAZEZERETI0ZE60R ©

ssnsREl 119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
/\\/T\ ﬁﬂvv% $&i§ lzﬁL HE

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continueq) 19. BEZRHEMWEMSRE R
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on WTAESERNFBEEREZAHN
the invoice dates. BRER D AT ©

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE—N\H&F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T FET
0 to 30 days 0&£30H 6,101 4,543
31 to 60 days 31260H 3,647 1,322
61 to 90 days 61290H 33 2,227
91 to 180 days 912180H 96 -
9,877 8,092
20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES EHNEE
31 March 1 April
2019 2018*
—ZE-hHF —E-N\F
=A=t-8 mA-A
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#& T FET
Contract liabilities EHEE 163 2,713
* The amount in this column is after the adjustments from the application * SRR ER BBV IS®E ER F155%
of HKFRS 15. BERBISH -
The contract liabilities at 1 April 2018 were fully recognised as “E-N\FMA-—HMAHNBENRK
revenue in the current year. FETBHERB W -
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21. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 21, RITRHEHMEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE—N\H&F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FET
Bank loans, unsecured and guaranteed KA ERNBITER 5,292 1,697
Other loans, unsecured and EEBEERN
unguaranteed EMER 20,000 -
25,292 1,697
Carrying amounts repayable*: JEEERIBRBTE":
Within one year —F R 5,292 1,697
In the second year B 4F 20,000 -
25,292 1,697
Less: Amounts included under current & : FIl R R A BN B B8 KB
liabilities (including bank and (BREEEKRKEED
other loans with a repayable on RITREMER)
demand clause) (25,292) (1,697)
Amounts included under non-current I RAIEREB B EH KA
liabilities = -

* B BFORTIRIEE R TR ET EDE KA B

* The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in loan

agreements.

The bank borrowings as at 31 March 2019 carry interest
ranging from prime rate -1% in Hong Kong to one month Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate +3% (2018: prime rate in Hong
Kong per annum).

The other borrowings as at 31 March 2019 carry interest at 5%
per annum (2018: nil). The other borrowings are denominated
in HK$ and used for general working capital.

As at 31 March 2019, bank borrowings amounting to
HK$5,292,000 (2018: HK$1,697,000) are guaranteed by
the Company. As at 31 March 2019, deposits placed at
an insurance company amounting to HK$4,514,000 (2018:
HK$4,426,000) held by Top Mark are pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

(EiE o

BHE_T-NF=A=1T—BZ#RT
EENENENTEEEENX1%
EFARITARFE+BR(ZF—N
FUBEBEFMNEHR) -

ATE-NFE=A=+—AHEMmE
RES%MFFRF B (ZT—N\F:
) o HipfE RIAB T E R BIE— &
BEED -

RZE—NF=ZA=+—8 #E17
& 85,292,000/ (= T — )\ F:
1,697,000% L) BB & A & & R o ©
T E-hAhEFE=ZA=+—HB B E
EHBRFEELTTRRREBAAZ
7 74,514,000 (= & — /\ F:
4,426,000/ 70) B EHE 8 - AER X

SEERN—RRTHBE -
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (ASSETS)

The following are the deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

2. EEHRBEE(EE)
DA A5 B AT R 38 1 4 FE R 0 1B 1T
BERE(EE) ARES

Accelerated
ECL tax

provision depreciation Total
HHEE

EIEEE MEBREBERE B

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FAEXT FET

At 1 April 2017 RZE—tFHEHA—H - (37) (37)

Charge to profit or loss REBR M - 105 105

At 31 March 2018 RZE-NF=ZA=+—H - 68 68

Credit to profit or loss FFAEE (429) (359) (788)

At 31 March 2019 R-_E-NAF=A=+—H (429) (291) (720)
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the FH P K T8DBI R 2R g A SROIR - I A

unutilised tax losses of HK$450,000 (2018: HK$808,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses
available may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by the
PRC companies from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of deductible temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC
subsidiary amounting to approximately HK$11,931,000 (2018:
HK$6,402,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

Bt R B) A 2 B 1A B $8450,000/% TT

—F— )\ : 808,0007 T ) fE R I
MEEE A HBEFENEE
PR ER 4588 o

BEFBROCEMSHRE A=ZFF
NE—A—AR BHPEQRHRERLN
i F P R M BR BB TE IR o Bt
FE A R B FT BB A B 2 5t F &9 A] 3K 30
ERHEEMABEVNEGRE P HRE
B3R FE R TB 49 411,931,000 T (= F
— \4F 1 6,402,000/ 7T) * RERAE
EHRE DRI EL TR EENEERE
BZEREZEEA MK RERAA B
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23. SHARE CAPITAL 23. g7
Number of
shares Share capital
B & B [
HK$
B TT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREECAB T EEBR
Authorised: EE
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and R_-_Z—+tFWMA—H -
31 March 2019 —E-N\F=ZA=+—8BK
—E-NEFE=ZA=+—H 500,000,000 50,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHAR:
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 and W -_ZT—+FMWA/—H -
31 March 2019 —E-N\F=ZA=+—HRK
—E-AFE=ZA=+—H 380,000,000 38,000,000
All issued shares rank pari passu in all respects with the existing FrBEE#ITIRHMERBEZEITRO A
issued shares. EFTEZAREER -
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24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 24, AP ERR R

COMPANY
2019 2018
—E—-hE —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR T FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KRB ARIEE 79,611 79,611
Property, plant and equipment Wz - WE M& 3,180 -
82,791 79,611
Current assets mENE E
Other receivables H I %\ IE 239 252
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UK BT BB 2 &) IR 409 231
Bank balances and cash AT 4 &iﬁﬁ 52,920 54,821
53,568 55,304
Current liabilities nBEE
Other payables H S 5R0E 1,460 5,551
Amount due to a subsidiary FEATHT B A7) 5 15,431 1,621
16,891 7,172
Net current assets M EEFE 36,677 48,132
119,468 127,743
Capital and reserves BEARKFHE
Share capital Ji% < 38,000 38,000
Reserves i 81,468 89,743
119,468 127,743

/I 24 Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 24, A" ERRET =)

COMPANY (Continued)
Reserves of the Company AQTRE

Share Accumulated

premium losses Total
IR 3% B RitEE et
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET
As at 1 April 2017 RZE—+tFHEA—H 124,553 (26,619) 97,934
Loss and total comprehensive & RNE1E N 2 AR
expense for the year - (8,191) (8,191)
As at 31 March 2018 RZZT—\F
—A=+—H 124,553 (34,810) 89,743
Loss and total comprehensive K518 N 2 AR
expense for the year - (8,275) (8,275)
As at 31 March 2019 RZZE—-NF
—A=+—H 124,553 (43,085) 81,468

asammEzns {05
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OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

The Group made minimum lease payments in respect of its
factory premises and staff quarters amounting to approximately
HK$3,925,000 during the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018:
HK$3,532,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

 R=E=HE

AEBHEABEA
REE-ZE-—NF=ZA=+—HLF
B -AEERAEREIETIREX
8 &K € 4 43,925,000/ 7 (=
= — )\ 4 : 3,532,000 7T) °

REBREHR - NEBERE A A JH
REMERAEZRKRREBEERT
51| HA A B

2019 2018

—E-NF —E—N\EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FH T FAT

Within one year —F R 3,321 3,012
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZERTF (BREEEMRT) 9,662 10,202
After five years hF1& 9,451 12,757
22,434 25,971

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for factory premises and staff quarters. These leases are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to twelve years. None
of the leases include any contingent rentals.

Included above are the commitments for future minimum lease
payments to Top Champion, of which Mr. Chan Leung Choi, the
former chairman, chief executive officer and executive director,
has control. Mr. Chan Leung Choi, has resigned his position as
chairman, chief executive officer and executive director of the
Company on 13 April 2018. Mr. Chan Leung Choi is also the
brother of Mr. Chan Tat Choi, the former executive director.
The commitments for future minimum lease payments to Top
Champion are as follows:

el ASERBMERETIRE
ENNES REBEOEEFEAN
FoEt _F -HAOMERRFBEML

EXEIIE AT EE - ITHAREFRIIT
E=EMBRMELERENREE ZRR&K
BEHESAE - REMEER TN
FOAT=ZHBEARAEF TK
RMERATESE -REMELETAA
HWITEEREMEEZRL - HHS
ZARREKEHRSEEWT -

2019 2018

—E-NF —E-)N\F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FTET FAT

Within one year —F R 175 263
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZFRF(BREEEMS) = 175
175 438

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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26. PARTICULARS OF NON WHOLLY-OWNED

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY &

The table below shows details of non wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company that have material non-controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of ownership Profits allocated to
incorporation and interests and voting rights non-controlling interests
principal place of  held by non-controlling for the year ended

26. ADRIFEEEMEQEF

TRINRAABEE BRI R
ZFEEMBRANFE

Accumulated non-
controlling interests as at

Name of subsidiary business interests as at 31 March 31 March 31 March
R=A=t+-H
EMA LR FEHERAERE BE=A=t-HLEE R=A=+-A
WEAREE TEEELY BEZRREELA PETFHEHBRENER REtF LGSR
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E2-hE ZE-\F ZEB-NE ZT-N\§ ZB-NE —T-N\HF
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TET THER FET
Norry Tech The PRC 49% 49% 2,477 295 16,799 15,351
pigilfes hE
Tristate International Hong Kong 49% 49% 3,429 2,520 14,955 11,526
B T B BR &%
5,906 2,815 31,754 26,877

Summarised financial information in respect of the above two
companies that have material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

BAERFENERZ LRMER G
M BERBERINMT - A%
BRI EREEERHEANSRE-

BREBMEZERERAT
2018/19%F 3R
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26. PARTICULARS OF NON WHOLLY-OWNED

26. ADRIFEEEMEQEF

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) \-1€ )
Norry Tech RFE
2019 2018
—E-n&E -—T-N\%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Current assets mENEE 36,356 29,217
Non-current assets FmBEE 7,636 9,964
Current liabilities mERE 9,707 7,851
Equity attributable to owners of RAZEHEB ABMER
Norry Tech 34,285 31,330
2019 2018
—E-AHF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FAT
Revenue Wz 67,105 40,674
Expenses X 62,050 40,072
Profit for the year attributable to owners 3& &I 2 % B A & 1h F A% F
of Norry Tech 5,055 602
Other comprehensive (expense) income 3 A3 # B A JE(EF A
for the year attributable to owners of  E ftb 2 & (B 2) Y A
Norry Tech (2,100) 3,045
Total comprehensive income for the — HFlEHA ARG FAR 2 E WA
year attributable to owners of Norry R
Tech 2,955 3,647
Net cash inflow from operating KETFHAERESMAFE
activities 2,266 1,461
Net cash outflow from investing WEFESBR MM FE
activities (1,610) (1,133)
Net cash inflow RE&RAFRE 656 328

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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26. PARTICULARS OF NON WHOLLY-OWNED

26. AATFEZTEMWE Q2T

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued) \-1€ )
Tristate International 5k 23 [ B8
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Current assets mENE E 32,961 24,836
Current liabilities nBBE 2,440 1,313
Equity attributable to owners of B ERER AENER
Tristate International 30,521 23,523
2019 2018
—2-nE -—T-N\%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Revenue Wz 82,234 48,676
Expenses 3 75,236 43,533
Profit and total comprehensive income B 30 B B2 # 5 A F& (b F 755 F &
for the year attributable to owners of & W A 4%
Tristate International 6,998 5,143
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating #& & EE TR &R A
activities Cm) F 58 1,119 (1,683)
Net cash outflow from investing KREFHABRES ML FE
activities (140) -
Net cash inflow (outflow) BeEmAORL) #58 979 (1,683)
BHREBEZERBRAR
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. EXREAREIR
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in AEBEEEEAUBRASEET
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern BRERELE WEBEBLEBK
while maximising the return to the shareholders through the BEEHRARETREREH A&
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall ENEBRBEBEFUREEES) -
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which REBERNEEBIEER (BIEHE21
include bank and other borrowings disclosed in note 21 and BEREHRITEREMES) RARFHEAR
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising share ANEGER (BERERRE) -
capital and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on AAFES TR ERNERE -
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the B ARAEFERSHEEARANKAR
Company consider the cost and the risks associates with each MR BERARAESHNES
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of ER AKEEBEBRNRKRE 1T
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure ik BT EXELRBEEETE
through the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as BB ERERE -
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. £t T A
Categories of financial instruments SWMIAER
2019 2018
—ZE-hF — N\
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost HEHEKATNEREE 139,295 -
Loans and receivables (including cash E X K EWZE (BIER ¢ X
and cash equivalents) REEEW) - 118,894
Financial liabilities THEE
Amortised cost B 5 KR 36,572 9,917

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. Rt T A »)
Financial risk management objectives and policies cREAMEEEERBE
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade AEENTESRTABEESHERK
receivables, other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade RIE - U IE - SRITEHRKEIR
and other payables and bank and other borrowings. Details of & ‘féf SR E A ERFIBMETRE
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. HEE ZSEeRTENFBEER
The risks associated with these financial instruments include BT HZEem T EAHENER
market risks (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and b B 45 T % B g (5 & & B & ) 2 &
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are b2) - EERRBEREEER - ER
set out below. The management manages and monitors these ZERBEBRFRHNRTIX - B
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on EERVERZSRABUBRERESR
a timely and effective manner. BEEBHEEEME-
Market risks % & B
Currency risk B R R
The Group’s exposure to currency risk mainly arises from the ZIS SEHEmHNEERRBREEREE
fluctuation of US$, Euro and Renminbi (‘RMB”) against the CTBMITEARB(ARYE] X AEH
functional currencies of the relevant group entities. The carrying ’E SEEBNEEENERLE -5
amounts of the foreign currency denominated monetary assets ERDEEEUIININESEEEE
and monetary liabilities other than the functional currencies F &fﬂ% BERMENT -§ f@ g 7
of the group entities are as follows. The management closely T BE 1% SN R B i 1 DA A B 1N R B
monitors foreign exchange exposure to mitigate the foreign
currency risk.
Liabilities Assets
=R EE
2019 2018 2019 2018
ZEB-hAEFE —ZE-N\F ZB-IF —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET FERT FAET
uss$ X (626) (1,834) 7,669 6,731
RMB ARH — - 7,000 4,674
Euro 5 - - 111 176
EEEEERERAT
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Since HK$ is pegged to US$ under the Linked Exchange Rate
System, the management does not expect significant foreign
currency exposure in relation to the exchange rate fluctuation
between HK$ and US$. The Group mainly exposes to foreign
currency risks other than US$.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase in the functional currencies against the relevant
foreign currency of the relevant group entities. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used in management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items, and adjusts their translation at
the end of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive (negative) number below indicates an
increase (decrease) in the Group’s profit after tax for the year
ended 31 March 2019 where the functional currency of the
relevant group entities strengthens against the relevant foreign
currencies. For a 5% weakening of the functional currency
of the relevant group entities, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the Group’s profit after tax for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

28.

ol -, Q= NGy
ctREREEH
R B (E)
BERE DT
REBEEXGE BrHEExs
o EEEREHRTYEEEETLET
fEREEMERIIERR - NEEE
ZEE B ETIAININER R

ERBER(#)

TRALASEEHBEEEENDY
REERNBABINEER EA5%IE N
THHRE 5% REREFGINEE
KA EEMRANGERELL
Ko HPREDTMERBEAINESHED
AEEE®HEE  YRINEERE
E%REEMNERE R RN MEAELH
B TEMEAL(R)BFRTHERE
EEREEEILAAMINETER -
AEBEBEE—_FT-NF=ZA=1+—H
L1E 4R R BR A 10 A /9 38 0 ORi 2>) - 48
FAEBERYEERRES%AEH K
SEBEE_T-NAF=ZA=1+—AH1L
FERRRGNELERSHERTE -

2019 2018
—2-n% — N\
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TET

Foreign currency IhitE
RMB AR (292) (195)
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is ’é,i%*’?% BRERERRO LT

unrepresentative of the foreign exchange risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate other borrowings as disclosed in note 21. The
management of the Group continuously monitors interest rate
exposure.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
variable-rate bank balances and bank and other borrowings
as disclosed in notes 18 and 21 due to the fluctuation of
the prevailing market interest rate. The Group currently does
not have a policy on hedging interest rate risk. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank borrowings.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability
outstanding at each reporting period end was outstanding for
the whole year. A 100 basis point increase or decrease is used
which represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit after tax
for the year ended 31 March 2019 would decrease/increase by
HK$44,000 (2018: HK$14,000).

Bank balances are excluded from sensitivity analysis as the
directors of the Company consider that the exposure of cash
flow interest rate risk arising from variable-rate bank balances
is insignificant.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arising from the carrying amounts of the
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk before
application of HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables and bank balances.

For trade receivables, in order to minimise the credit risk,
the management has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

28.

ol -, Q= NGy
ctREREEH
Fl 3 7 2 (48 )
BERE DT
UNTEHRRED>TMIBERFZEBRITEE
FITESHMERRBRET - Z2 T HZE
BREHMEPHRREENEELAETF
KEB - ZOWMAHEFER LA TE
1wﬂ§%§ﬁ%ﬁ§%ﬂ$éﬁﬂ%
""""" B -

ERBER(#)

MF R EF/TEI00EE B MET A
HMEERFTE AEAEEEE -
TE-NFZA=Z+-—BULFENKRH
18 %8 R #5980 L 18 144,000 T (=&

— J\4F : 14,0005 1) ©
HRARBEERETEIRITA %F
iaﬁiﬁiumgﬂjtﬂ %fﬁ&TE

WIRITHEBR T BREEREDN -

1= B Jm b K (8 AT 1

R|ERR AKBERHF 5 RE

TEEAMEFAKERIUBHEERD
R EERRKE RS BB REPT
JIEHREMEENKREE -

W*%*ﬂimﬂfﬂﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁ

%EW%%HH$§IMEEH 2 16
$$I%fﬁﬂ e T EHRE HER
FRIE - HAth R R IR 1T 4

HREZEBEKREMS - RREEER
R ERECZKEKAEREEER
RE -EEMEREMBERER - U
FEREREIRET BB HEE - 1t
S R SR BN RS B R E R & HE R
Bz A E &5 ARERRL A
Bl eRBIELRAWZBERERE - BLIELT
EARRERRA AKEMNEER
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BREBMEZERERAT
2018/19%F 3R

133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

28.

134

BB HRR M T

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk before
application of HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018 (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 15% of the total
gross trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer as at 31 March 2018 and 57% of the total gross
trade receivables was due from the five largest customers as
at 31 March 2018.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the Group’s
bank balances are deposited with banks of high credit ratings.

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk after application
of HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables and bank balances.

For trade receivables, in order to minimise the credit risk,
the management has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group performed
impairment assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 14% of the total
gross trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer as at 31 March 2019 and 50% of the total gross
trade receivables was due from the five largest customers as
at 31 March 2019.

For other receivables, management of the Group make periodic
individual assessment under 12m ECL on the recoverability of
other receivables based on historical settlement records and
past history. The management of the Group believes that there
is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of other receivables.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the Group’s
bank balances are deposited with banks of high credit ratings.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk after application
of HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018 (Continued)

The table below detail the credit risk exposures of the Group’s
financial assets at amortised cost, which are subject to ECL

€M I HE»
SREAMESEEERBE(F)
EBE G R AT ()

RS- \EMA—ARAEBHE
25 % B SR 14 AN = E 15 B R IR A
%(,és)
TREMREAERZBBRASE
CAREE CBEENEEEBRIEM

assessment: E)FTEER 2 EE R
External Internal 12-month Gross
credit credit or lifetime carrying
rating rating ECL amount
1218 B =
B A EZHES BRE
2019 —E-hEF FEIR FEFIHK FEEE wiE
HK$’000
THET
Financial assets at amortised cost J’Eﬁﬁé EEZF "f CEMEE
Trade receivables 2 5 EIE N/A Note 1 Lifetime 67,027
TEHRA B &1 ECL
ZHEH
FEEE
Other receivables H b B WK IE N/A Note 2 12m ECL 824
TiE A Fff &2 1218 A
EHEE
B8
Bank balances SRITH % Baa or N/A 12m ECL 74,044
higher T iE F 1218 A
Baaz} EHEE
) BB
Notes: B 5
(1) For trade receivables, the Group has applied the simplified approach in 1) MEBESHERFENE  ASECEBES

HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. As part of the
Group’s credit risk management, the Group used an internal credit rating
by assigning an individual loss rate to each of its debtors. The estimated
loss rate are based on aging of individual trade debtors as well as historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The Group applied internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

Qualification classification definition:
“Strong”: The counterparty has low probability of default.

“Good”: The counterparty has low default risk. Debtors frequently
settles after due date but usually settles in full.

“Satisfactory”: The counterparty has moderate default risk.

As at 31 March 2019, lifetime ECL of HK$2,603,000 for trade receivables
with an aggregate gross carrying amount of HK$67,027,000 has been
recognised. The estimated loss rates assigned to debtors ranged from
1% to 5%.

MBS RAFSR 2 BT AFEERH
BEHEEERZERBEE -FRASHE
EERREERN -7 NEBERBAD
FEEFE REREBASEERNER
? ° E%E%i’EﬂE%%E’MEIE‘JE%E%/\E@

R BB ARTEH IR ANE L BRE
fw’]i WRBEESNHEZRALS
ARG RTE M ERETTRE  AEEE
AOAMEERBRIFRZAEREATE

]
BRNPER
[fEf2l: HFEHEHNIARER -
[RoF]: HFFEHNRBRE -&A
a"%/\@%ﬁx\lﬁﬂ B 1% #
CEREEEEBLEE -
[zl HFFTEVRARRTSE -

—hWhE=ZA=+—8 LT
TEEW,OZ?,OOO%%T_EE’UE%Fﬁ”ﬁl%ﬂlﬁﬁﬁ%
2 Hi 18 H = B E5182,603,000/5 7T © DB T
EHANETEEENT1%E% °
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk after application
of HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

) For the purpose of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past
due information to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

. EMI A

tREAMREEEERBE (&)

1= B & [ R 18 5 (4E)

F_%—ﬂimﬂ AEREEYH
EEBFERBAEENEERBK

%%)

B ()

@) BRABEERRERNS  A£EEHE
PEHFEEERREVIERBERRD
FRERIE N -

Not past due/

no fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
I A,
EEE
i1 5 EEBFER ot
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
TE T TE T TE T
Other receivables H fth & W 5K 18 - 824 824
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical B EAXIREEH AREF 258

observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed
by management to ensure relevant information about specific
debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group provided
HK$2,952,000 impairment allowance for trade receivables.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continueq) 28. £t T A »)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) tREAMEEEERBE (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) = f”fﬂ B R E G (&)
Overview of the Group’s exposure to credit risk after application RZE—N\FHA—BERBEENK
of HKFRS 9 at 1 April 2018 (Continued) wE EE‘J PSR AEENEER R
B (&)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL that TRITEREBCH AR f’f%f&“uﬁl
has been recognised for trade receivables under the simplified RIEWMR ZHEREEREE
approach.
Lifetime Lifetime ECL
ECL (credit- (not credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HiTE 5 2 HiTE H
EEEE ZEEE
(EERE) (BEERE) @Et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH& T FET
At 31 March 2018 under RZZE—-N\F=A=+—H
HKAS 39 BB ERFEIRAT - - -
Adjustment upon application FERE BB RELER
of HKFRS 9 FOR B R T E - 1,722 1,722
At 1 April 2018 — as restated RZE—N\FHEA—H
- KB - 1,722 1,722
Impairment losses recognised 2R EEE 2,071 881 2,952
Amounts written off as uncollectible Hifi $4 A& 7~ A Uk [0 #9 71 38 (2,071) - (2,071)
At 31 March 2019 RZZE-NAF=ZA=+—8H - 2,603 2,603

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the directors of the Company, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate reserves and borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The maturity dates for the non-derivatives financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are contracted floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end
of the reporting period.

nEE T AR

ARBEERRBESRARE

BREEME

T RBEER

I8 A

BRECELABEBNRBDE

ENEEAKERE B

&Eﬁﬂﬁiu&/%iuwibé/\ﬁ@ﬁ
Ko AEBEBBEFEEHRBEREE

BME FHESEER R

ER iﬁ%mi

fﬂ@Eﬂ%rﬂlﬁF&E (EGOEREREY
El i%//lh@ﬁiﬂﬁ/v\

TERAEESRAEEHR TS U%J

%R IRIB AL BRAEE
MAEEXFRAYNREBRR S
HoFTETRAEBIHATIR

BB

TENBHETE -

TR E

?ﬁ%lj 8 &$i£ﬁimh§

ERERERIAFFN X
T BARE IS AR =

BREBMEZERERAT
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

o =Ny
cREMEER

REE T E R ()
//\L@é &ﬂiljgﬂ

RRBUR (&)

Weighted On demand Total
average or less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months cash flows amounts

RERKEH ABRRS
TR = ZEAR mEAE EHE
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THERT TERT THERT

At 31 March 2019 RZE-NF
=A=+—H

Trade and other payables BHREMERTE - 11,280 11,280 11,280
Bank and other borrowings BOREMEE 5.0 25,292 25,292 25,292
36,572 36,572 36,572

Weighted On demand Total
average or less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months cash flows amounts

RE S AUBRR S
TR E “HEAR mELR FHE
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET TEX

At 31 March 2018 RZE-N\F
=A=+—H

Trade and other payables BB EMERTE - 8,220 8,220 8,220
Bank borrowings BITEE 5.0 1,697 1,697 1,697
9,917 9,917 9,917

/I 38 Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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28.

BB HRR M T

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (Continued)

Bank and other borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 3 months” time
band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2019,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank
and other borrowings amounted to HK$25,292,000 (2018:
HK$1,697,000). Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors of the Company do not believe that it is
probable that the banks and the financial institution will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank and other
borrowings will be repaid after the end of reporting period in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. As a result, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows will amount to HK$27,360,000 as at
31 March 2019 (2018: HK$1,712,000).

28.

o =Ny

cREAREEBEEREE )
///L ﬁf” (£§)
REBEE RMERERE (&)

IR E R EEGRROBITREME
Bt A LB E B D[R E K
“EARIBERRN - R-TE—AF=A
Zt+—H ZERTEREMEEHR
8L 38 N 4 48 58 525,292,000 7T (=&
— \4F 1 1,697,000/ 7T) - ZER| K&
BT AR EERAERIT
e mEERRKA T ERBEZ K
BIRFER - N AR EBHEZFRT
MEMEESRBRERBEMTH S
ERHHANGFEHREEE At

TE-NFZA=Z+—HBOAEEF
B Eﬁ & 7 48 %8 527,360,000 T (=
T — N\ 11,712,000 7T) °

Maturity Analysis - Bank and other borrowings subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HBAAH - REENRBRMPREREBRRNBTRAMEE

Total
0-3 4-6 7-12 1-2 undiscounted  Carrying
months months months years cash flows amount
27 z tZE AEERSE
=fEA ~ER TZ=ER -EWF REAH REE
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET FTiEx TET FTiEx FTiEx TET
31 March 2019 “E-AF=ZRA=+—H 5,360 - - 22,000 27,360 25,292
31 March 2018 —-\¥=ZA=+—H 1,712 - - - 1,712 1,697
Fair value AEE

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values. Such fair values have been
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

ARAEERRBRBHKATARA
HHRENeREERERAGBERD
BEEAFERE ZERFEREES
BEMZEBEAZEARSRED
WrEEE o

BREBMEZERERAT
2018/19%F 3R
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29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(i)

(i)

140

BB HRR M T

Related party transactions

In addition to the transactions,

29. BB 1 5

(i)

balances and

commitments disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had entered into the
following significant transaction during the years ended

BB X5

ﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬂﬁ%i&%ﬁ@%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&éﬁé

2R
EEAEti

ﬁ%&%@f‘ﬁl\*
—NFERZ

REHE
Z—N

F=A 7+ B IEFERZ T3

31 March 2019 and 2018: BARS :
Name of related Nature of
company Relationship transaction 2019 2018
BEHATER 2REA XHEME —E-hF — N\
HK$’000 HK$'000
T & T FAT
Top Champion Entity over which Rental expense of 263 263
Eod= Mr. Chan Leung rented premises
Choi, the former FEWEMA LM X
chairman, chief
executive officer and
executive director,
and also the brother
of Mr. Chan Tat Choi,
former executive
director, has control.
BR AR M 5c A (R B AT
EE - ITHRBHFEY
TESE - AT
BEEREMEEZR
BRI ZE
S -
Compensation of key management personnel (i) FEEBEASHM
The remuneration of directors and other members of key EERHMETEEEABRATF
management during the year is as follows: EzHEMAOT :
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAET
Fee 2R 358 300
Salaries and allowances e KoERL 7,129 5,987
Performance related incentive EMRE
payments 2,618 1,630
Contributions to retirement benefit iR K& | 5+ 2l {1 3%
schemes 167 149
10,272 8,066

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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31.

BB HRR M T

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN 30. RIKERIGTE
The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme which REEL2EBFRGE QBB
is registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the PIRIHBEIME A AEeTE ((RES
“MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident 8D M ERE Tf\fJX%‘Jr gl - ZETEl
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the schemes are WEERASEEENRAIFEE HIE
held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the AANESRE RESITEKERS
control of trustees. For members of the MPF Scheme, the H - NEE® H%1,500% 7T =k 48 B &
Group contributes at the lower of HK$1,500 per month or 5% B A N B05% (ABE & B2%E) RAES
of relevant payroll costs each month to the MPF Scheme, in FrEER MEENELEREFESEMN
which the contribution is matched by the employee. R .
The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC are REBOFTBMNBRARIEESS AP E
members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan operated BRERNBERE %ﬂﬁi%ﬁa FET B
by the government of the PRC. The subsidiary is required ;ﬂz 8 o Z M B A B AR FH AN B
to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to the 2lsdL F‘<17Maa FIFT &R &
retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only Ej]ﬁ EQ?E F o AN E 5t E%Eﬁ( ?15 &
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit BEARENETEAEREEHNK -
plan is to make the specified contributions.
The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of HK$1,372,000, BE_Z—NF=ZA=Z=+—HLFE
for the year ended 31 March 2019 (2018: HK$1,384,000) P18 55 T R Y 48 B 21,372,000 7T
represent contributions paid and payable to these plans by the — T — )\ 4F : 1,384,000/ 7T) $5 A &=
Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans. B % Bl %ﬁmﬁﬁ? JE bR B AT KR
ZEET I o
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 31. MEEFEELE 2 EHER
FINANGING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TRAENEEREFHELEC BEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash G pERekIERESETH @
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for BEESC AGB AR ENEIH
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified RKEERENAEENGERERE
in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash EoBEARRERYReRECEE -
flows from financing activities.
Bank and
Interest other
payable borrowings Total
BITR
EAFE Hfth & & et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET
At 1 April 2017 W-ZE—tEmMA—Q - 19,876 19,876
Financing cash flows BRERESAE (473) (18,179) (18,652)
Interest expense N 473 - 473
At 31 March 2018 RZE—N\F=ZA=+—H - 1,697 1,697
Financing cash flows BMERERE (201) 23,595 23,394
Interest expense FER X 1,041 - 1,041
At 31 March 2019 - NE=A=+—H 840 25,292 26,132
BREBMEZERERAT
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32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

32. BRI
A S BB 2 R BB 5 MR M0 R A

142

period are set out below.

FIaT e

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of paid share capital/  Attributable equity interest
Name of subsidiary establishment operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
BETR
BEMRL/ BRBRAR
WELR AR B 3 B EENE HMER AEEEMLRE TEXH
2019 2018
—Z-hfF —ET-)N\E
% %
Directly held
EEES
Hang Wing BVI Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Investment holding
B EBRUAKE B HKS1 REZR
LTRRk1BT
Indirectly held
BEEE
Top Mark Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Trading of rockdriling
EREW BE BE HK$1,000,000 equipment and
38 1%1,000,0005% 7T machineries
BEBERERSM
Maxa RockDrills Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Trading of rockdrilling
) ) HK$100 equipment
T3 R 1007% T BEELRE
Norry Tech The PRC The PRC Registered capital 51 51 Manufacturing of
RME H H HK$23,000,000 rockdriling equipment
i E R BLERERB
23,000,000/ 7T
Tristate International Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares 51 51 Trading of rockdrilling
Hh o BB ) ) HK$10,000 and piling and drilling
L& 110,000 7T equipment and
machineries
BEBL THMENLR
& R MW
Top Glory Construction Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Trading of rockdrilling
Equipment le\ted BE BE HK$10,000 and piling and drilling
EREELRBEBRA 38 1%10,0007 7T equipment and
machineries
BERE THENELR
L
Tristate (HK) Holdings Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 100 Investment holding
Company Limited B 0 HK$1 REER
TERIET
Top Standard Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100 = Inactive
B B HKS1 TEEH
TERIET
Norry Tech is a wholly foreign owned enterprise. KR ERBIEBENDE-

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year and during the year.

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

~AT }—\“ [5a]
EﬂL 1557418 =
For the year 31 March
BE=ZA=1+—-RHILEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—F-R% ZF-R"F ZE-tf ZT-)N\F ZTB-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FERT
Revenue U 28 126,620 141,744 126,675 99,703 163,441
Profit before tax B& 1% A& ) 31,691 42 906 7,897 2,922 25,798
Income tax expense FEHAX (5,316) (7,654) (5,146) (2,431) (6,033)
Profit for the year F R F 26,375 35,252 2,751 491 19,765
Total comprehensive FAZEBR T
income for the year 26,521 33,694 1,101 3,756 17,017
Total comprehensive AT AL
income (expense) 2B W
attributable to: GHIE
Owners of the Company A RA @A A 21,210 26,158 (3,083) (551) 12,140
Non-controlling interests ~ JE4% il i 25 5,311 7,536 4,184 4,307 4,877
Earnings (loss) per share, PR EA R A
basic (HK cents) (E518)CBL) 717 8.99 0.73) (0.61) 3.65
As at 31 March
R=A=+-—H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“ET-1F ZZE—RE —ZE—+tF —E-NF ZE-NIEF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FAET FAET FAET THET
Total non-current assets  3ERBEEEE 15,489 13,363 15,665 15,331 16,462
Total current assets REEERE 98,274 115,798 165,359 162,114 202,881
TOTAL ASSETS BMEE 113,763 129,161 181,024 177,445 219,343
Total current liabilities mEBEREE 43,221 32,913 30,382 22,979 49,650
Total non-current liabilites B & EAE 308 172 - 68 -
TOTAL LIABILITIES BaE 43,529 33,085 30,382 23,047 49,650
NET ASSETS BEZE 70,234 96,076 150,642 154,398 169,693
Equity =
Equity attributable to KABIHEEB A
the owners of the ElERER
Company 52,988 71,294 128,072 127,521 137,939
Non-controlling interests ~ FE#22 4 %% 17,246 24,782 22,570 26,877 31,754
TOTAL EQUITY B 70,234 96,076 150,642 154,398 169,693
BREBEZERERAT
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DEFINITIONS

“Articles” or “Articles
of Association”

“associate(s)”
“Board” or “Board of

Directors”

“Business Day” or
“pusiness day”
“BVI”

“Colour Shine”

“Companies
Ordinance”

“Company”, “our
Company”,
“we” or “us”

“connected person”

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

144

the articles of association of the Company,
as amended from time to time

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the
Listing Rules

the board of Directors

a day on which banks in Hong Kong are
generally open for normal banking business
to the public and which is not a Saturday,
Sunday or public holiday in Hong Kong

the British Virgin Islands

Colour Shine Investments Limited ¥ & &
ABR A ], a company incorporated in the BVI
with limited liabilities, which is wholly-owned
by the Executive Director, Mr. He Xiaoming,
and became the Controlling Shareholders on
5 February 2018

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended or
supplemented from time to time

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited (245 % &
I AR A A, a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability on
17 March 2016

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the
Listing Rules

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the
Listing Rules and, unless the context
otherwise requires, means each of Mr. Chan
Leung Choi, Mr. Chan Kin Choi and Hang Yip
up to 5 February 2018, and from 5 February
2018, Mr. He Xiaoming and Colour Shine

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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DEFINITIONS

i,
LS
==
“Director(s)”
“Euro”

“Executive Director(s)”

“Group”, “our Group”,
“we” or “us”

“Hang Wing”

“Hang Yip”

“HK$” or “Hong Kong
dollars” or
“HK dollars” or
“cents”

“Hong Kong” or “HK”
“Independent

Non-executive
Director(s)”

the director(s) of the Company
the lawful currency of the European Union
the executive Director(s)

the Company and its subsidiaries or,
where the context otherwise requires, in
respect of the period prior to our Company
becoming the holding company of its present
subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of our
Company, some or any of them and the
businesses carried on by such subsidiaries
or (as the case may be) their predecessors

Hang Wing Holdings Limited 4 &5 {22 i% 45 [R
28], a BVI business company incorporated
in the BVI with limited liability on 16 March
2016 and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

Hang Yip Company Limited &% 5 R A &,
a BVI business company incorporated in the
BVI with limited liability on 16 March 2016,
owned as to 80% by Mr. Chan Leung Choi
and 20% by Mr. Chan Kin Choi and was
one of the Controlling Shareholders up to
5 February 2018

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively,
the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
of the PRC

the independent non-executive Director(s)

[E=%]
[BX7T]
[RITES

(RS E ]k
[ 1]

[48 &%

[ 2]

[7&T] ek
(&AL

[&#]

[ IFTT
=

BREBZERARDE

RAFESE
BN Bt B2 0% T M
WITES

AR AE Kk EKB
Al X &S A
BHRARQA® AR
KAREHEREZ
mERARZES A
BARBREHE R
A~ &R o 3 AE fa] Y B
RERZENE R
s (R 1B R M E) B Al
FRAEENFER

=

BEZERER QA
RZFE-—R"E=ZA
TARNBHERBRELE
EEMMAZERE R
LEESAEARA

1B 5K S HY 3B B 2 B
EWMERBRAAH
BRAR M £ R BR@EM
5 £ 9 Rl B80% K&
0% BEEZT
—N\NE-_RAERAR
PR R 2 —

FREEATEEBELR
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DEFINITIONS

“independent third
party(ies)”

“Legislative Council”
“Listing”

“Listing Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Main Board”

“Maxa RockDrills”

“MPE”

146

person(s) or company(ies) and their
respective ultimate beneficial owner(s),
who/which, to the best of our Directors’
knowledge, information and belief, having
made all reasonable enquiries, is/are
not connected with our Company or our
connected persons as defined under the
Listing Rules

the Legislative Council of Hong Kong
listing of the shares on the Stock Exchange

the date, being, 11 January 2017, on which
the shares of the Company are listed on the
Stock Exchange and from which dealings in
the shares are permitted to commence on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (as amended, supplemented or
otherwise modified from time to time)

the Macau Special Administrative Region of
the PRC

the stock market (excluding the option
market) operated by the Stock Exchange
which is independent from and operated in
parallel with the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange

MAXA RockDrills Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability on 15 September 2000 and is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

mandatory provident fund

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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DEFINITIONS

“Norry Tech”

“PRC”

“Prospectus”

“Reporting Period”

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”
“Shareholder(s)”
“Stock Exchange”
“subsidiary” or
“subsidiaries”

“substantial
shareholder”

HILTIEERRREFNELERBERR QA
(Norry Tech Engineering Equipment Limited),
a company established in the PRC with
limited liability on 16 October 2007, owned
as to 51% by Tristate Hong Kong and 49%
by Mr. Chan Lap Wai Gary, an independent
third party (other than being a shareholder of
Norry Tech and Tristate International), and is
an indirect non wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company

the People’s Republic of China, excluding for
the purpose of this annual report only, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan region

the prospectus of the Company dated
30 December 2016 in relation to the initial
public offering and the listing of our Shares
on the Stock Exchange

2018/2019 (from 1 April 2018 to 31 March
2019)

the lawful currency of the PRC

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time
the ordinary share(s) of the Company

the shareholder(s) of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
has the meaning ascribed thereto under the

Companies Ordinance

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the
Listing Rules
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[ EEE
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DEFINITIONS

“Top Glory”

“Top Mark”

“Tristate Hong Kong”

“Tristate International”

“U.S.” or “United
States”

“US$”, “USD” or “U.S.
dollars”

“Year”

“op”

148

Top Glory Construction Equipment Limited
EREZEZHEAR AT, formerly known
as Top Mark Construction Equipment
Limited R R 2R EH R 2 A, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability on 20 March 2015 and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Top Mark Mechanical Equipment Limited
ERBMWRMEARRF, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability on 28 July 1997 and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

Tristate (HK) Holding Company Limited, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability on 13 April 2016, and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

Tristate International Industrial Limited E
BEFRE ¥ G A A, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability on 28 July
2008, and held as to 51% by Hang Wing
and 49% by Dawn Success Ltd, a company
wholly-owned by Ms. Vane Siu Ling Linda,
wife of Mr. Chan Lap Wai Gary, and an
indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of our
Company

the United States of America, its territories,
its possessions and all areas subject to its
jurisdiction

United States dollars, the lawful currency for
the time being of the United States

Year ended 31 March 2019

per cent

Yuk Wing Group Holdings Limited
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